THE EXPRESS THE EXPRESS THE EXPRESS THE EXPRESS

Friday

NOVEMBER 22, 2024

JAMADIUL AWWAL 19, 1446 A.H.

Rs50

tribune.com.pk

KARACHI

ARTNER OF

The New York Times

INTERNATIONAL EDITION



GOVERNMENT OF SINDH THAR COAL & ENERGY BOARD

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

HIRING THE CONSULTANCY SERVICES OF AN "ENGINEERING FIRM" FOR THE ASSISTANCE OF THAR COAL TARIFF DETERMINATION COMMITTEE (TCTDC) OF THAR COAL & ENERGY BOARD (TCEB) IN THE DETERMINATION OF COMMERCIAL OPERATION DATE (COD) STAGE TARIFF FOR 7.8 MTPA OF M/S SINO SINDH RESOURCE LIMITED (SSRL) AT THAR COALFIELD BLOCK-I.

The Thar Coal & Energy Board (TCEB), Government of Sindh, is seeking to hire the consultancy services of an "Engineering Firm for the assistance of Thar Coal Tariff Determination Committee (TCTDC) of TCEB in the Determination of Commercial Operation Date (COD) Stage Tariff for 7.8 Mtpa of M/s Sino Sindh Resource Limited (SSRL) at Thar Coalfield Block-I".

Terms of Reference (TORs) of the assignments will include the following. However, detailed TORs, eligibility, evaluation, criteria and scope of work are included in Request for Proposal (RFP).

Project and Assignment

- SSRL has submitted a tariff petition (the "Tariff Petition") before TCEB for Determination of Commercial Operation Date (COD) Stage Tariff for 7.8 Mtpa of M/s SSRL at Thar Coalfield Block-I, District Tharparkar, Sindh, Pakistan (the "SSRL Project").
- TCEB and its TCTDC, constituted pursuant to Rule 3(1) of Tariff Rules, is required to analyze and evaluate the contents of the Tariff
 Petitions and determine the COD-stage tariff for the SSRL Project in accordance with the requirements of the relevant laws of Pakistan,
 including without limitation, the TCEB Act, the Tariff Rules and other rules and regulations made thereunder.

Interested Consultant Firms are requested to submit their technical and financial proposals on the prescribed RFP document, which can be collected from the address mentioned below on any working day during office hours from the date of publication of this RFP up to 10-12-2024 at 12:00 p.m. The prescribed RFP may also be downloaded from the websites www.tceb.gos.pk and www.ppmssindh.gov.pk.

The pre-bid conference will be held on 28-11-2024 at 12:00 p.m. at the address given below.

Technical and Financial Proposals are to be submitted at the following address not later than 10-12-2024 at 12:00 p.m. along with Pay Order / Bank Draft of Rs. 3,000/- (Non-Refundable Bidding Documents Fees) and 2% of bid security of total bid in favour of That Coal & Energy Board. Only Technical Proposals shall be opened on 10-12-2024 at 01:00 p.m. Please note that the selection shall be made as per SPPRA Rules 2010.

Note: In case of date of submission and opening of Proposals is declared as a public holiday by the Government due to any reason, the next official working day shall be dealt to be date of submission and opening of Proposals at the same time and venue.

Director (Admin & Finance),

Thar Coal & Energy Board.
Government of Sindh.

Address

1st Floor, Statelife Building No. 3, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Opposite CM House, Karachi. Telephone: 021-99207528-29 Facsimile: 021-99207534, E-mail: diradmin@tceb.gos.pk

INF/KRY/3762/24

پڑھے گا سندھ تو برھے گا سندھ







گورنمینت آف سنڌ **ٿر ڪول اينڊ انرجي بورڊ** عمد عندال محمد ا

ٹر ڪول فيلد بلاك I ۾ ميسرز SINO سنڌ ريسورس لميٽيڊ (SSRL) جي 7.8 ATPA واسطي ڪمرشل آپريشن ڊيٽ (COD) اسٽيج ٽيرف جي تعين ۾ ٿر ڪول اينڊ انرجي بورڊ (TCEB) جي ٿر ڪول ٽيرف ڊٽرمنيشن ڪميٽي (TCTDC) جي ٿر ڪول ٽيرف ڊٽرمنيشن ڪميٽي (All TCTDC) جي معاونت لاءِ هڪ "انجنيئرنگ فرم" جي ڪنسلٽنسي خدمتن جي هائرنگ

ثر كول ايند انرجي بورد (TCEB) ، گورنمينٽ آف سنڌ ، ثر كول فيلله بلاك- ا ۾ ميسرز SINO سنڌ ريسورس ليٽيد (SSRL) جي MTPA 7.8 واسطي كمرشل آپريشن ديٽ (COD) اسٽيج ٽيرف جي تعيين ۾ ثر كول ايند انرجي بورد (TCEB) جي ثر كول ٽيرف ڊٽرمنيشن كميٽي (TCTDC) جي معاونت لاء هڪ "انجنيئرنگ فرم" جون كنسلٽنسي خدمتون هائرنگ كرڻ چاهي ٿو.

كم لاء ترمس آف ريفرنس (TORs) ۾ هيٺيون ڳالهيون شامل هونديون. بهرحال، تفصيلي TORs، اهليت، ڇنڊڇاڻ، معيار ۽ كم جو دائرو. RFP دستاويزن ۾ شامل آهي.

پروجيڪٽ ۽ ڪم:

SSRL هڪٽيرف پٽيشن (دي "ٽيرف پٽيشن") TCEB آڏو ٿر ڪول فيلڊ بلاڪ- ا، ضلعو ٿرپارڪر سنڌ پاڪستان (دي "SSRL جي SSRL") ۾ ميسرز SSRL جي SSRL جي ڪمرشل آپريشن ڊيٽ (COD) اسٽيج ٽيرف جي تعين لاءِ جمع ڪرائي آهي.

TCEB ۽ ان جي TCTDC, ٽيرف رول جي رول-(1)3 جي قائم ٿيل پوئيواري ۾، ٽيرف پٽيشنز جي ڇنڊڇاڻ ۽ اينالاٽز گهربل آهي ۽ پاڪستان جي واسطيدار قانون جي گهرجن سان مطابقت ۾ SSRL پروجيڪٽ واسطي COD-اسٽيج ٽيرف جو تعين، بشمول حدن کانسواء, TCEB ايڪٽ، ڏنل ٽيرف رولز ۽ ٻين قاعدن ۽ ضابطن سان مطابقت ۾.

دلچسپي رکندڙ ڪنسلٽنٽ فرمن کي گذارش ٿي ڪجي ته اهي پنهنجا ٽيڪنيڪل ۽ فنانشل پروپوزل مقرره RFP ڪاغذن تي اماڻين جيڪي هيٺ ڏنل ايڊريس تي ڪنهن بي ڪر ڪار واري ڏينهن آفيس وقت دوران هن RFP جي شايع ٿيڻ کان 12.2024 تي منجهند 12:00 وڳي تائين حاصل ڪري سگهجن ٿا. مقرر ٿيل RFP دستاويز ويب سائيٽس: ڪري سگهجن ٿا. مقرر ٿيل www.ppmssindh.gov.pk تان به ڊائون لوڊ ڪري سگهجن ٿا.

پري-بد كانفرنس 28.11.2024 تي منجهند 12:00 و كي هيٺين ايبريس تي منعقد ٿيندي

نيڪنيڪل ۽ فنانشل پروپوزل هيٺ ڄاڻايل ايڊريس تي ديو ۾ دير 10.12.2024 تي منجهند 12:00 وڳي پهچڻ گهرجن، جن سان 3000 رپين جو پي آرڊر/بينڪ ڊرافٽ (ناقابل واپسي واڪ دستاويز في) ۽ جملي واڪ جي واڪ سيڪيورٽي جو 2 سيڪڙو بحق ٿر ڪول اينڊ انرجي بورڊ سميت جمع ڪرائڻ گهرجن، فقط ٽيڪنيڪل پروپوزل 10.12.2024 تي منجهند 1:00 وڳي کوليا ويندا، مهرباني ڪري ڏيان ڏيو تہ چونڊ سنڌ پبلڪ پروڪيورمينٽ رول 2010 مطابق ڪئي ويندي.

نوت: جيڪڏهن پروپوزلز اماڻڻ ۽ کولڻ واري تاريخ تي حڪومت طرفان ڪنهن به سبب جي ڪري سرڪاري موڪل جو اعلان ڪيو وڃي ٿو ته پوء انهن پروپوزلز جي اماڻڻ ۽ کولڻ لاء ورندڙ ڪم ڪار وارو ڏينهن ساڳئي وقت ۽ هنڌ سان اماڻڻ ۽ کولڻ جي تاريخ طور سمجهيو ويندو.

دائريكتر (ايدمن ايند فنانس)،

تر كول ايند انرجي بورد، گورنمينت آف سنڌ ايدرس: فرست فلور، استيت لائف بليدگ نمبر. 3,

ڊاڪٽر ضياءُالدين احمد روڊ, سامهون سي ايپر هاڻوس, ڪراچي ٽيليفون: 29-99207528-9920, فيڪسيمائل: 99207534-021, اي ميل: diradmin@tceb.gos.pk

INF/KRY.NO.3762/2024

پڙهندي سنڌ تہ وڌندي سنڌ





Thar Coal & Energy Board

Government of Sindh

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

HIRING CONSULTANCY SERVICES OF ENGINEERING FIRM FOR

THE ASSISTANCE OF THAR COAL TARIFF DETERMINATION COMMITTEE (TCTDC) IN THE DETERMINATION OF COD STAGE TARIFF FOR 7.8 MTPA MINE OF M/S SINO-SINDH RESOURCE LIMITED (SSRL) AT THAR BLOCK-I

Foreword

This Standard Request for Proposals is applicable to consultant assignments by the procuring agencies of Sindh province whose legal agreement makes reference to the Sindh Public Procurement Rules.

Table of Contents

Section 1.	Letter of Invitation	3
Section 2.	Instructions to Consultants	2
DATA	SHEET	16
Section 3.	Technical Proposal - Standard Forms	22
Section 4.	Financial Proposal - Standard Forms	33
Section 5.	Terms of Reference	39
Section 6.	Forms of Contract	47

INTRODUCTION

Thar Coal and Energy Board ("TCEB") has been established under Thar Coal and Energy Board Act, 2011 (the "TCEB Act"), to act, *inter alia*, as a one window facilitator in matters relating to coal mining projects being developed in the region of Thar, Sindh, Pakistan. Pursuant to Section 5 of the TCEB Act, TCEB is mandated to determine and control the tariff of coal from Thar, Sindh, Pakistan subject to the relevant guidelines and consistent with the provisions of the TCEB Act, laid down by the Government of Sindh ("GOS"). In addition, TCEB is also responsible for determining the process and procedures for reviewing tariff and recommending tariff adjustments.

In order to review the coal tariff petitions by various mine lease holders in Thar Coalfield and to determine the coal tariff, the Government of Sindh has notified the Thar Coal Tariff Determination Rules, 2014 on 27th November 2014. Subsequently, the Chairman TCEB/Chief Minister, in terms of Rule 3(1) of the Thar Coal Tariff Determination Rules, 2014, has constituted a three member "Thar Coal Tariff Determination Committee", to assist the Board in matters relating to the coal tariff and to send its recommendations to the Board by evaluating and reviewing coal tariff petitions submitted by the mine lease holders in Thar.

Thar Coal Energy Board, Government of Sindh is issuing this Request for Proposal to invite technical and financial proposals **from interested CONSULTANTS** for Hiring the Engineering Firm for the Assistance of Thar Coal Tariff Determination Committee (TCTDC) in the Determination of COD Stage Tariff for M/s Sino-Sindh Resource Limited (SSRL) for its 7.8 Mtpa mine at Thar Coal Block-I on behalf of Thar Coal and Energy Board (TCEB).

The main objective of the assignment is that Consultant shall thoroughly review, evaluate and comment on the Tariff Petitions and all supporting documents by SSRL from a technical perspective, conduct equipment verification and surveys (Overburden volume, Pit positions, coal stocks etc) and perform all functions which the Procuring Agency (PA) may request them to perform in relation to the project.

The detailed Terms of Reference of the assignment are given in section-5 of this RFP

LETTER OF INVITATION

Dear Consultants,

- 1. Thar Coal and Energy Board ("TCEB") hereby invites, through this Request for Proposal ("RFP"), to submit a bid (consisting of a technical bid and a financial bid) for the performance of consultancy services in accordance with the Terms of Reference ("TORs") specified in the Request for Proposal for the assistance of Thar Coal Tariff Determination Committee (TCTDC) in the Determination of COD Stage Tariff for M/s Sino-Sindh Resource Limited (SSRL) for its 7.8 Mtpa mine at Thar Coal Block-I, District Tharparkar, Sindh, Pakistan.
- 2. The Thar Coal Energy Board (TCEB) (hereinafter called "Procuring Agency") now invites proposals to provide the following consulting services:

Hiring of Engineering Firm "For the Assistance of Thar Coal Tariff Determination Committee (TCTDC) in the Determination of COD Stage Tariff for M/s Sino-Sindh Resource Limited (SSRL) for its 7.8 Mtpa mine at Thar Coal Block-I on behalf of Thar Coal and Energy Board (TCEB)"

3. This Request for Proposal has been addressed to the **interested Consultant**.

The successful Bidder shall be selected under the "Quality and Cost Based Selection Method" as described in this RFP, in accordance with the provisions of Sindh Public Procurement Rules, 2010.

4. The RFP includes the following documents, enclosed herewith:

Introduction

Section 1 - Letter of Invitation

Section 2 - Instructions to Consultants (including Data Sheet)

Section 3 - Technical Proposal - Standard Forms

Section 4 - Financial Proposal - Standard Forms

Section 5 - Terms of Reference

Section 6 - Standard Forms of Contract

5. Please inform us in writing at the following address:

Director (Admin & Finance)

Thar Coal and Energy Board

1st Floor, State Life Building No.3, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Opposite CM House, Karachi

All queries by the Bidders may also be forwarded to the foregoing address.

Yours sincerely,

Attention: Director (Admin & Finance)
THAR COAL AND ENERGY BOARD

GOVERNMENT OF SINDH

Section 2. Instructions to Consultants

Instructions to Consultants

Definitions

- (a) "Procuring Agency (PA)" means the department with which the selected Consultant signs the Contract for the Services.
- (b) "Consultant" means a professional who can study, design, organize, evaluate and manage projects or assess, evaluate and provide specialist advice or give technical assistance for making or drafting policies, institutional reforms and includes private entities, consulting firms, legal advisors, engineering firms, construction managers, management firms, procurement agents, inspection agents, auditors, international and multinational organizations, investment and merchant banks, universities, research institutions, government agencies, non-governmental organizations, and individuals
- (c) "Contract" means an agreement enforceable by law and includes General and Special Conditions of the contract.
- (d) "Data Sheet" means such part of the Instructions to Consultants that is used to reflect specific assignment conditions.
- (e) "Day" means calendar day including holiday.
- (f) "Government" means the Government of Sindh.
- (g) "Instructions to Consultants" (Section 2 of the RFP) means the document which provides shortlisted/Pre-qualified (as the case may be) Consultants with all information needed to prepare their Proposals.
- (h) "LOI" (Section 1 of the RFP) means the Letter of Invitation sent by the procuring agency to the Consultant.
- (i) "Proposal" means the Technical Proposal and the Financial Proposal.
- (j) "RFP" means the Request for Proposal prepared by the procuring Agency for the selection of Consultants.
- (k) "Sub-Consultant" means any person or entity to whom the Consultant subcontracts any technical part of the Services.
- (l) "Terms of Reference" (TOR) means the document included in the RFP as Section 5 which explains the objectives, scope of work, activities, tasks to be performed, respective responsibilities of the procuring agency and the Consultant, and expected results and deliverables of the assignment.

2. Introduction

- 2.1 The Procuring agency named in the Data Sheet will select a consulting firm/organization (the Consultant) from those listed in the Letter of Invitation, in accordance with the method of selection specified in the Data Sheet.
- 2.2 The eligible Consultants (shortlisted if so) are invited to submit a Technical Proposal and a Financial Proposal, or a Technical Proposal only, as specified in the Data Sheet. The Proposal will be the basis for contract negotiations and ultimately for a signed Contract with the selected Consultant.
- 2.3 Consultants should familiarize themselves with rules / conditions and take them into account while preparing their Proposals. Consultants are encouraged to attend a pre-proposal conference if one is specified in the Data Sheet. Attending the pre-proposal conference is, however optional. Consultants may liaise with procuring agency's representative named in the Data Sheet for gaining better insight into the assignment.
- 2.4 Consultants shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of their proposals and contract negotiation. The Procuring Agency reserves the right to annul the selection process at any time prior to Contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to the Consultants.
- 2.5 Procuring Agency may provide facilities and inputs as specified in Data Sheet.

3. Conflict of Interest

- 3.1.1 Consultants are required to provide professional, objective, and impartial advice and holding the Procuring Agency interest paramount. They shall strictly avoid conflict with other assignments or their own corporate interest. Consultants have an obligation to disclose any situation of actual or potential conflict that impacts their capacity to serve the best interest of the Procuring Agency, or that may reasonably be perceived as having such effect. Failure to disclose said situations may lead to the disqualification of the Consultant or the termination of its Contract.
- 3.1.2 Without limitation on the generality of the foregoing, Consultants, and any of their affiliates, shall be considered to have a conflict of interest and shall not be recruited, under any of the circumstances set forth below:
 - (i) A consultant that has been engaged by the procuring

agency to provide goods, works or services other than consulting services for a project, any of its affiliates, shall be disqualified from providing consulting services related to those goods, works or services. Conversely, a firm hired to provide consulting services for the preparation or implementation of a project, any of its affiliates, shall be disqualified from subsequently providing goods or works or services other than consulting services resulting from or directly related to the firm's consulting services for such preparation or implementation.

- (ii) A Consultant (including its Personnel and Sub-Consultants) or any of its affiliates shall not be hired for any assignment that, by its nature, may be in conflict with another assignment of the Consultant to be executed for the same or for another Procuring Agency.
- (iii) A Consultant (including its Personnel and Sub-Consultants) that has a business or family relationship with a member of the Procuring Agency's staff who is directly or indirectly involved in any part of (i) the preparation of the Terms of Reference of the assignment, (ii) the selection process for such assignment, or (iii) supervision of the Contract, may not be awarded a Contract, unless the conflict stemming from this relationship has been resolved.

Conflicting Relationships

- 3.2 Government officials and civil servants may be hired as consultants only if:
 - (i) They are on leave of absence without pay;
 - (ii) They are not being hired by the agency they were working for, six months prior to going on leave; and
 - (iii) Their employment would not give rise to any conflict of interest.

4. Fraud and Corruption

It is the Government's policy that Consultants under the contract(s), observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of such contracts. In pursuit of this policy, the Procuring Agency follows the instructions contained in Sindh Public Procurement Rules 2010 which defines:

"Corrupt and fraudulent practices" includes the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly of anything of value to influence the act of another party for wrongful gain or any act or omission, including misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempt mislead a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;

Under Rule 35 of SPPR 2010, "The PA can interalia blacklist Bidders found to be indulging in corrupt or fraudulent practices. Such barring action shall be duly publicized and communicated to the SPPRA. Provided that any supplier or contractor who is to be blacklisted shall be accorded adequate opportunity of being heard".

5. Integrity Pact

Pursuant to Rule 89 of SPPR 2010 Consultant undertakes to sign an Integrity pact in accordance with prescribed format attached hereto for all the procurements estimated to exceed Rs. 2.5 million.

6. Eligible Consultants

- 6.1 If a pre-qualification process has been undertaken, as outlined under Rule 27 and 28 of SPPR 2010 for the Contract(s) for which this RFP document is being issued, those firms in case of Joint Ventures with the same partner(s) and Joint Venture structure that had been pre-qualified are eligible.
- 6.2 Short listed consultants emerging from request of expression of interest are eligible.
- 6.3 National consultant in case of National Competitive Bidding (NCB) and international consultant in case of International Competitive Bidding (ICB) shall comply with applicable laws concerning Federal, Provincial & Local taxes and specific eligible parameters defined in the Data sheet, terms of reference ToRs; and consultant from eligible source countries (for ICB) as defined under the rules, laws statues or relevant instructions of Federal/Provincial Government are eligible.

7. Eligibility of Sub-Consultants

A prequalified/shortlisted Consultant would not be allowed to associate with Consultants who have failed to qualify the pre- qualification/short listing process.

8. Only one Proposal

Prequalified/Shortlisted Consultants may only submit one proposal. If a Consultant submits or participates in more than one proposal, such proposals shall be disqualified. Participation of the same Sub-Consultant, including individual experts, to more than one proposal is not allowed.

9 Proposal Validity

9.1 The Data Sheet indicates Proposals validity that shall not be more than 90 days in case of National Competitive Bidding (NCB) and 120 days in case of International Competitive Bidding (ICB). During this period, Consultants shall maintain the availability of Professional staff nominated in the Proposal. The Procuring Agency will make its best effort to complete negotiations within this period. Should the need arise; however, the Procuring Agency may request Consultants to extend the validity period of their proposals. Consultants who agree to

such extension shall confirm that they maintain the availability of the Professional staff nominated in the Proposal, or in their confirmation of extension of validity of the Proposal, Consultants may submit new staff in replacement, who would be considered in the final evaluation for contract award. Consultants who do not agree have the right to refuse to extend the validity of their Proposals.

9.2 Consultants shall submit required bid security along with financial proposal defined in the data sheet (which shall not be less than one percent and shall not exceed five percent of proposed amount).

10. Clarification and Amendment in RFP Documents

- 10.1 Consultants may request for a clarification of contents of the RFP in writing, and procuring agency shall respond to such queries in writing within three calendar days, provided they are received at least five calendar days prior to the date of opening of proposal. The procuring agency shall communicate such response to all parties who have obtained RFP document without identifying the source of inquiry. Should the PA deem it necessary to amend the RFP as a result of a clarification, it shall do so.
- 10.2 At any time before the submission of Proposals, the Procuring Agency may amend the RFP by issuing an addendum/corrigendum in writing. The addendum shall be sent to all Consultants and will be binding on them. Consultants shall acknowledge receipt of all amendments. To give Consultants reasonable time in which to take an amendment into account in their Proposals the Procuring Agency may, if the amendment is substantial, extend the deadline for the submission of Proposals.

11. Preparation of Proposals

- 11.1 In preparing their Proposal, Consultants are expected to examine in detail the documents comprising the RFP. Material deficiencies (deviation from scope, experience and qualification of personnel) in providing the information requested may result in rejection of a Proposal.
- 11.2 The estimate number of professional staff months or the budget required for executing the assignment should be shown in the data sheet, but not both. However, proposal shall be based on the professional staff month or budget estimated by the consultant.

12. Language

The Proposal as well as all related correspondence exchanged by the Consultants and the Procuring Agency shall be written in English However it is desirable that the firm's Personnel have a working knowledge of the national and regional languages of Islamic Republic of Pakistan.

13. Technical Proposal Format and Content

- 13.1 While preparing the Technical Proposal, consultants must give particular attention to the following:
 - (i) If a consultant considers that it does not have all the expertise for the assignment, it may obtain a full range of expertise by associating with individual consultant(s) and/or other firms or entities in a joint venture or sub- consultancy, as appropriate. The international consultants are encouraged to seek the participation of local consultants by entering into a joint venture with, or subcontracting part of the assignment to, national consultants.
 - (ii) For assignments on a staff-time basis, the estimated number of professional staff-months is given in the Data Sheet. The proposal shall, however, be based on the number of professional staff-months estimated by the firm. For fixed-budget-based assignments, the available budget is given in the Data Sheet, and the Financial Proposal shall not exceed this budget.
 - (iii) It is desirable that the majority of the key professional staff proposed be permanent employees of the firm or have an extended and stable working relationship with it.
 - (iv) Proposed professional staff must, at a minimum, have the experience indicated in the Data Sheet, preferably working under similar geographical condition.
 - (v) Alternative professional staff shall not be proposed, and only one curriculum vitae (CV) shall submitted for each position.
- 13.2 The Technical Proposal shall provide the following information using the attached Standard Forms (Section 3):
 - (i) A brief description of the consultant organization and an outline of recent experience on assignments (Section 3B) of a similar nature. For each assignment, the outline should indicate, *inter alia*, the profiles of the staff, duration of the assignment, contract amount, and firm's involvement.

- (ii) Any comments or suggestions on the Terms of Reference and on the data, a list of services, and facilities to be provided by the PA (Section 3C).
- (iii) The list of the proposed staff team by specialty, the tasks that would be assigned to each staff team member, and their timing (Section 3E).
- (iv) CVs recently signed by the proposed professional staff and the authorized representative submitting the proposal (Section 3F). Key information should include number of years working for the consultant and degree of responsibility held in various assignments during the last _____ (PA may give number of years as per their requirement) years.
- (v) Estimates of the total staff input (professional and support staff; staff time) needed to carry out the assignment, supported by bar chart diagrams showing the time proposed for each professional staff team member (Sections 3E and 3G).
- (vi) A detailed description of the proposed methodology, work plan for performing the assignment, staffing, and monitoring of training, if the Data Sheet specifies training as a major component of the assignment (Section 3D).
- (vii) Any additional information requested in the Data Sheet.
- 13.3 The Technical Proposal shall not include any financial information.

14. Financial Proposals

14.1 The Financial Proposal shall be prepared using the attached Standard Forms (Section 4). It shall list all costs associated with the assignment, including (a) remuneration for staff (in the field and at the Consultants' office), and (b) reimbursable expenses indicated in the Data Sheet (if applicable). Alternatively Consultant may provide their own list of cost. If appropriate, these costs should be broken down by activity. All activities and items described in the Technical Proposal must be priced separately; activities and items described in the Technical Proposal but not priced, shall be assumed to be included in the prices of other activities or items.

15. Taxes

- 15.1 The Consultant will be subject to all admissible taxes including stamp duty and service charges at a rate prevailing on the date of contract agreement unless exempted by relevant tax authority.
- 16. Submission,
- 16.1 Proposal shall contain no interlineations or overwriting.

Receipt, and Opening of Proposals

- Submission letters for both Technical and Financial Proposals should respectively be in the format of TECH-1 of Section 3, and FIN-1 of Section 4. All pages of the original Technical and Financial Proposals will be initialed by an authorized representative of the Consultants (Individual Consultant). The authorization shall be in the form of a written power of attorney accompanying the Proposal
- 16.2 All required copies of the Technical Proposal are to be made from the original. If there are discrepancies between the original and the copies of the Technical Proposal, the original governs.
- 16.3 The original and all copies of the Technical Proposal shall be placed in a sealed envelope clearly marked "TECHNICAL PROPOSAL" Similarly, the original Financial Proposal (if required under the selection method indicated in the Data Sheet) shall be placed in a sealed envelope clearly marked "FINANCIAL PROPOSAL" followed by name of the assignment, and with a warning "Do Not Open With The Technical Proposal." If the Financial Proposal is not submitted in a separate sealed envelope duly marked as indicated above, this will constitute grounds for declaring the Proposal non-responsive.
- 16.4 The Proposals must be sent to the address indicated in the Data Sheet and received by the PA no later than the time and the date indicated in the Data Sheet, or any extension to this date. Any proposal received by the PA after the deadline for submission shall be returned unopened. In order to avoid any delay arising from the postal or PA's internal dispatch workings, Consultants should ensure that proposals to be sent through couriers should reach a day before the deadline for submission.

17. Proposal Evaluation

17.1 From the time the Proposals are opened to the time the Contract is awarded, the Consultants should not contact the PA on any matter related to its Technical and/or Financial Proposal. Any effort by Consultants to influence the PA in the examination, evaluation, ranking of Proposals, and recommendation for award of Contract may result in the rejection of the Consultants' Proposal.

Evaluators of Technical Proposals shall have no access to the Financial Proposals until the technical evaluation is concluded.

18. Evaluation of Technical Proposals

18.1 Notwithstanding any method used pursuant to Rule 36 (a-d) of SPPR 2010, the evaluation committee shall evaluate the Technical Proposals on the basis of their responsiveness to the Terms of Reference, applying the evaluation criteria, sub-

criteria, and point system specified in the Data Sheet. Each responsive Proposal will be given a technical score (St). A Proposal shall be rejected at this stage if it fails to achieve the minimum technical score indicated in the Data Sheet.

In the case of Quality-Based Selection, Selection Based on Consultant's Qualifications, and Single-Source Selection, the highest ranked consultant or firm selected on a single-source basis is invited to negotiate its proposal and the contract on the basis of the Technical Proposal and the Financial Proposal submitted.

Public Opening and Evaluation of Financial Proposals: (QCBS, Fixed-Budget, and Least-Cost Selection Methods Only)

18.2 After the technical evaluation is completed, the PA shall notify in writing Consultants that have secured the minimum qualifying marks, the date, time and location, allowing a reasonable time, for opening the Financial Proposals. Consultants' attendance at the opening of Financial Proposals is optional.

Financial proposals of those consultants who failed to secure minimum qualifying marks shall be returned un opened.

19. Evaluation of Financial Proposals

- 19.1 In QCBS and Least Cost, Financial Proposals shall be opened publicly in the presence of the Consultants' representatives who choose to attend. The name of the Consultants, and the technical scores of the Consultants shall be read aloud. The Financial Proposal of the Consultants who met the minimum qualifying mark will then be inspected to confirm that they have remained sealed and unopened. These Financial Proposals shall be then opened, and the total prices read aloud and recorded.
- 19.2 The Evaluation Committee will correct any computational errors. When correcting computational errors, in case of discrepancy between a partial amount and the total amount, or between word and figures the formers will prevail. In addition to the above corrections, activities and items described in the Technical Proposal but not priced, shall be assumed to be included in the prices of other activities or items.
- 19.3 The lowest evaluated Financial Proposal (Fm) will be given the maximum financial score (Sf) of 100 points. The financial scores (Sf) of the other Financial Proposals will be computed as indicated in the Data Sheet. Proposals will be ranked according

to their combined technical (St) and financial (Sf) scores using the weights (T = the weight given to the Technical Proposal; P = the weight given to the Financial Proposal; T + P = 1) indicated in the Data Sheet: $S = St \times T\% + Sf \times P\%$. The firm achieving the highest combined technical and financial score will be invited for negotiations. However in least cost the technically qualified consultant with lowest proposed cost shall be selected.

19.4 The Procuring Agency will select the firm that submitted the highest ranked Technical Proposal.

20. Negotiations

20.1 Negotiations will be held at the date and address indicated in the Data Sheet. The invited Consultant will, as a pre-requisite for attendance at the negotiations, confirm availability of all Professional staff. Failure in satisfying such requirements may result in the PA proceeding to negotiate with the next-ranked Consultant. Representatives conducting negotiations on behalf of the Consultant must have written authority to negotiate and conclude a Contract.

21. Technical negotiations

21.1 Technical Negotiations will include a discussion of the Technical Proposal, the proposed technical approach and methodology, work plan, organization and staffing, and any suggestions made by the Consultant to improve the Terms of Reference. The PA and the Consultants will finalize the Terms of Reference, staffing schedule, work schedule, logistics, and reporting. These documents will then be incorporated in the Contract as "Description of Services". Minutes of negotiations, which will be signed by the PA and the Consultant, will become part of Contract Agreement.

22. Financial negotiations

22.1 If applicable, it is the responsibility of the Consultant, before starting financial negotiations, to contact the local tax authorities to determine the tax amount to be paid by the Consultant under the Contract. The financial negotiations will include a clarification (if any) of the firm's tax liability, and the manner in which it will be reflected in the Contract; and will reflect the agreed technical modifications in the cost of the services. Consultants will provide the PA with the information on remuneration rates described in the Appendix attached to Section 4 (i.e. Financial Proposal - Standard Forms of this RFP).

23. Availability of Professional

23.1 Having selected the Consultant on the basis of, among other things, an evaluation of proposed Professional staff, the PA

Staff/experts

expects to negotiate a Contract on the basis of the Professional staff named in the Proposal. Before contract negotiations, the PA will require assurances that the Professional staff will be actually available. The PA will not consider substitutions during contract negotiations unless both parties agree that undue delay in the selection process makes such substitution unavoidable or for reasons such as death or medical incapacity. If this is not the case and if it is established that Professional staff were offered in the proposal without confirming their availability, the Consultant may be disqualified. Any proposed substitute shall have equivalent or better qualifications and experience than the original candidate and be submitted by the Consultant within the period of time specified in the letter of invitation to negotiate.

24. Award of Contract

- 24.1 After completing negotiations, the Procuring Agency shall award the Contract to the selected Consultant and within seven days of the award of contract, Procuring Agency shall publish on the website of the Authority and on its own website, if such a website exists, the result of the bidding process, identifying the bid through procuring identifying number, if any and the following information, evaluation report, form of contract and letter of award, bill of quantity or schedule of requirement, as the case may be.
- 24.2 After publishing of award of contract consultant required to submit a performance security at the rate indicated in data sheet.
- 24.3 The Consultant is expected to commence the assignment on the date and at the location specified in the Data Sheet.

25. Confidentiality

Information relating to evaluation of Proposals and recommendations concerning awards shall not be disclosed to the Consultants who submitted the Proposals or to other persons not officially concerned with the process, until the publication of the award of Contract. The undue use by any Consultant of confidential information related to the process may result in the rejection of its Proposal.

DATA SHEET

Clause	
Reference	
1.1	Name of the Assignment is: Hiring of the Consultancy Services o Engineering Firm for the "Assistance of Thar Coal Tariff Determination Committee (TCTDC) in the Determination of COD Stage Tariff for M/s Sino-Sindh Resource Limited (SSRL) for its 7.8 Mtpa mine at Thar Coal Block-I, District Tharparkar, Sindh, Pakistan'.
	The Name of the PA's official (s):
	<u>Director (Admin & Finance).</u> Thar Coal & Energy Board, Government of Sindh.
	Address: 1 st Floor, State Life Building No.3, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Opposite CM House, Karachi
	Telephone: 021-99207528-29 Facsimile: 021-99207534 E-mail: diradmin@tceb.gos.pk
1.2	The method of selection is: Quality & Cost Based Selection Method.
	The weights given to the Technical and Financial proposals are:
	Technical (80%) Financial (20%)
	The Edition of the Guidelines is: <u>The Sindh Public Procurement Rules.</u>
1.3	Financial Proposal to be submitted together with Technical Proposal:
	Yes (But in a separate sealed envelope)
1.4	The PA will provide the following inputs and facilities: Dedicated staff for liaison & coordination. All the available data and reports, if any.
1.5	A pre-bid conference will be held: Yes
	Date of pre-bid conference: 28-11-2024
	Time: 12:00 noon
	Director (Admin & Finance), Thar Coal & Energy Board, Government of Sindh.

	Address: 1 st Floor, State Life Building No.3, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Opposite CM House, Karachi
	Telephone: <u>021-99207528-29</u> Facsimile: <u>021-99207534</u> E-mail: diradmin@tceb.gos.pk
	Proposal submission address is: Mentioned as above.
	Proposals must be submitted not later than the following date and time: 10-12-2026 not later than 12:00 p.m. and Technical proposal shall be opened at 01:00 p.m. on same date and above venue.
1.6	Expected date for commencement of consulting services: Within seven (7) days after signing of the Contract.
	Location: Tharparkar and Karachi, Sindh and any other place as required by the PA.
9.1	Proposals validity shall not be more than 90 days in case of National Competitive Bidding (NCB) and 120 days in case of International Competitive Bidding (ICB).
9.2	The Consultant shall submit bid security of two percent (2%) of the bid price along with financial proposal, in form of pay order / bank draft, and in favor of the "Thar Coal & Energy Board, Sindh" . The bid security shall remain valid for a period of twenty eight (28) days beyond the proposal validity period.
10.1	Clarifications may be requested not later than <u>five</u> days before the submission date.
	The address for requesting clarifications is:
	Director (Admin & Finance) Thar Coal & Energy Board Address:
	1 st Floor, State Life Building No.3, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Opposite CM House, Karachi
	Telephone: 021-99207528-29 Facsimile: 021-99207534 E-mail: diradmin@tceb.gos.pk
12	The Proposal as well as all related correspondence exchanged by the Consultant and the Procuring Agency shall be written in English. However, it is desirable that the firm's Personnel have a working knowledge of the national and regional languages of Islamic Republic of Pakistan.
6.1	Not Applicable.

11.2	The estimated number of professional staff-months required for the assignment is: 10 including man-months of support staff									
13.1	The format of the Technical Proposal to be submitted is: <u>Full Technical Proposal</u>									
13.2 (vii)	Training is specific component of this assignment									
	<u>No.</u>									
14.1	Reimbursable expenses not applicable. The successful Consultant shall be paid on ump sum basis (all inclusive) in accordance with his approved lowest evaluated id. No additional reimbursement can be claimed on whatever pretext.									
15.1	Amounts payable by the PA to the Consultant under the contract to be subject to local taxation, stamp duty and service charges, if applicable Yes									
	The Consultant should quote their fee inclusive of all taxes, applicable on them.									
16.2	Consultant must submit the original and <u>05</u> photo copies of the Technical Proposal and the original of the Financial Proposal.									
13.1	MANDATORY ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA									
	A proposal received from the Consultant, shall only be considered if all the following components of the Basic Eligibility Criteria are satisfied and the firm will be required to submit the following, along with their technical proposal:									
	a. Valid registration with PEC (C6 or higher and specialization code ME07(ii) / CE11(ii) (General Mining / Excavation Work) / or relevant)									
	b. A copy of the Valid registration certificate of FBR & SRB should be attached.									
	c. The Consultant must possess a valid registration certificate from the income tax authority (i.e., the NTN certificate) and relevant sales tax authority, if applicable, Incorporation Certificates and registration with relevant professional body. Attach constitutional documents including memorandum and articles of association, certificate of incorporation or other documents of constitution, documents of registration of the legal entity, etc.									
	d. As part of the Technical Proposal, the Consultant shall also provide a separate affidavit on stamp paper (original) of adequate value confirming that it (i) has not been blacklisted by any government or semi government department, agency, autonomous body, international organization or other clients; (ii) is not in litigation or dispute with any public authority or public sector organization; and (iii) is not providing audit and/or assurance and/or any advisory and/or any tax services to M/s Sino-Sindh Resource Limited (SSRL) or any of its associated companies in any manner or form. In any case found in conflict of interest to above, the service contract will be terminated, and firm will be blacklisted.									

- e. Legal Requirement of drone survey must be meet as per regulations set by the (CAA), (if applicable)
- f. As part of the Technical Proposal, the Consultant should include brief details of any concluded litigations and arbitration with any public authorities and public sector organizations and the results thereof.
- g. As part of the Technical Proposal, the Consultant shall also provide a separate affidavit on stamp paper (original) duly signed stamp by Notary Public of adequate value confirming that it does not have any conflict of interest.
- h. Average annual turnover (For the last three years duly certified and must be more than 20 million.

Eligibility Criteria for the Consultant

- i. The Consultant should demonstrate / attach evidences of topographic survey for mining and geological projects with documentary proof and have at least five (5) years of relevant experience
- j. The Consultant shall have executed at least **Two (02) assignments** which included drone based topographical surveys for Mining and Geological Projects (minimum consultancy cost of **Rs. 05 million** and above). Letters of completion, completion certificates.
- k. The Consultant should be registered / updated with the Pakistan Engineering Council (PEC) in a PEC. A copy of the PEC registration certificate / updated / valid should be attached as part of the Technical Bid.

Criteria, sub-criteria, and point system for the evaluation of Full Technical Proposals are:

Points

- (i) Specific experience of the **Consultant** relevant to the assignment:
 - Relevant to the assignment mining works,
 geological work & Exploration work
 (minimum consultancy cost of **Rs. 5 million** and above with
 documentary proof / completion certificate (03 Mark for each project)
 - Drone Based Topographic Survey for mining, geological projects and exploration works with documentary proof / completion certificate (05 Mark for each project) [10]
 - Drone Based Topographic Survey for civil and other projects with documentary proof (02 Mark for each project) [08]

Total points for criterion (i): [30]

		proposed methodology and work plan in Terms of Reference:									
	a) T	echnical approach and methodology	[10]								
	b) V	b) Work plan [5]									
	c) C	Organization and staffing	[5]								
	,										
		Total points for criterion (ii):	[20]								
	(iii) Key profession	al staff qualifications and competence for the assignment	nt:								
	S.# Position										
	1 Project manager / Team Leader (01 No.)										
	2	Mining Engineer (01 No.)	10								
	3	Valuation Engineer (01 No.)	10								
	4	Surveying Specialist (01 No.) Site Surveyor/Associate Engineers (02 No.)	10								
	5	08									
	6	Done Survey Specialist (01 No.)	02								
	Total points for criterion (iii): [50]										
	Total points of criteria (i), (ii) & (iii): [100] Any Consultant securing less than 50% marks / points in above individual 3 categories / criteria shall be disqualified.										
	The minimum technical score (St) required to pass is: 70 Points										
	The Procedure of open competitive bidding will be Single stage – two envelope .										
	The type of contract v	vill be lump sum contract .									
20.1	Expected date and ac	dress for contract negotiations: To be announced later									
24.2	demand draft or ba	nt is required to submit performance security in form nk guarantee. The amount of performance second the contract amount.									
5.1	Consultant undertal PKR. 2.5 million.	kes to sign Integrity Pact for the procurement estima	nted to exceed								

Section 3. Technical Proposal - Standard Forms

[Comments in brackets] provide guidance to the shortlisted Consultants for the preparation of their Technical Proposals; they should be deleted from the Technical Proposals to be submitted.]

Refer to Reference Paragraph 13.1 of the Data Sheet for format of Technical Proposal to be submitted, and paragraph 13.2 of Section 2 of the RFP for Standard Forms required and number of pages recommended.

Form TECH-1.	Technical Proposal Submission Form	23
Form TECH-2.	Consultant's Organization and Experience	24
A - Consulta	nt's Organization	24
B - Consulta	nt's Experience	25
	Comments and Suggestions on the Terms of Reference and on Gies to be Provided by the PA	
A - On the T	erms of Reference	26
B - On Coun	terpart Staff and Facilities	27
Form TECH-4. Assignment	Description of Approach, Methodology and Work Plan for Perf	_
Form TECH-5.	Team Composition and Task Assignments	39
Form TECH-6.	Curriculum Vitae (CV) for Proposed Professional Staff	30
Form TECH-7.	Staffing Schedule ¹	32
Form TECH-8.	Work Schedule	

FORM TECH-1. TECHNICAL PROPOSAL SUBMISSION FORM

[Location, Date]

To: [Name and address of PA]

Dear Sirs:

We, the undersigned, offer to provide the consulting services for [Insert title of assignment] in accordance with your Request for Proposal dated [Insert Date] and our Proposal. We are hereby submitting our Proposal, which includes this Technical Proposal, and a Financial Proposal sealed under a separate envelope¹.

We are submitting our Proposal in association with: [Insert a list with full name and address of each associated Consultant] ²

We hereby declare that all the information and statements made in this Proposal are true and accept that any misinterpretation contained in it may lead to our disqualification.

If negotiations are held during the period of validity of the Proposal, i.e., before the date indicated in the Data Sheet, we undertake to negotiate on the basis of the proposed staff. Our Proposal is binding upon us and subject to the modifications resulting from Contract negotiations.

We undertake, if our Proposal is accepted, to initiate the consulting services related to the assignment not later than the date indicated in the Data Sheet.

We understand you are not bound to accept any Proposal you receive.

We remain.

Yours sincerely,

Authorized Signature [<i>In full and initials</i>]:	Name
and Title of Signatory:	Name
of Firm:	Address:

^{1 [}In case Paragraph Reference 1.2 of the Data Sheet requires to submit a Technical Proposal only, replace this sentence with: "We are hereby submitting our Proposal, which includes this Technical Proposal only."]

^{2 [}Delete in case no association is foreseen.]

For FTP Only

FORM TECH-2. CONSULTANT'S ORGANIZATION AND EXPERIENCE

A - Consultant's Organization

[Provide here a brief (two pages) description of the background and organization of your firm/entity and each associate for this assignment.]

B - Consultant's Experience

[Using the format below, provide information on each assignment for which your firm, and each associate for this assignment, was legally contracted either individually or as a corporate entity or as one of the major companies within an association, for carrying out consulting services similar to the ones requested under this assignment. Use 20 pages.]

Assignment name:	Approx. value of the contract (in current US\$ or Euro):					
Country: Location within country:	Duration of assignment (months):					
Name of PA:	Total No of staff-months of the assignment:					
Address:	Approx. value of the services provided by your firm under the contract (in current US\$ or Euro):					
Start date (month/year): Completion date (month/year):	No of professional staff-months provided by associated Consultants:					
Name of associated Consultants, if any:	Name of senior professional staff of your firm involved and functions performed (indicate most significant profiles such as Project Director/Coordinator, Team Leader):					
Narrative description of Project:						
Description of actual services provided by your	r staff within the assignment:					
Firm's Name:						

For FTP Only

FORM TECH-3. COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS ON THE TERMS OF REFERENCE AND ON COUNTERPART STAFF AND FACILITIES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE PA

A - On the Terms of Reference

[Present and justify here any modifications or improvement to the Terms of Reference you are proposing to improve performance in carrying out the assignment (such as deleting some activity you consider unnecessary, or adding another, or proposing a different phasing of the activities). Such suggestions should be concise and to the point, and incorporated in your Proposal.]

B - On Counterpart Staff and Facilities

[Comment here on counterpart staff and facilities to be provided by the PA according to Paragraph Reference 1.4 of the Data Sheet including: administrative support, office space, local transportation, equipment, data, etc.]

FORM TECH-4. DESCRIPTION OF APPROACH, METHODOLOGY AND WORK PLAN FOR PERFORMING THE ASSIGNMENT

[Technical approach, methodology and work plan are key components of the Technical Proposal. You are suggested to present your Technical Proposal (maximum of 50 pages, inclusive of charts and diagrams) divided into the following three chapters:

- a) Technical Approach and Methodology,
- b) Work Plan, and
- c) Organization and Staffing,
- a) <u>Technical Approach and Methodology.</u> In this chapter you should explain your understanding of the objectives of the assignment, approach to the services, methodology for carrying out the activities and obtaining the expected output, and the degree of detail of such output. You should highlight the problems being addressed and their importance, and explain the technical approach you would adopt to address them. You should also explain the methodologies you propose to adopt and highlight the compatibility of those methodologies with the proposed approach.
- b) <u>Work Plan.</u> In this chapter you should propose the main activities of the assignment, their content and duration, phasing and interrelations, milestones (including interim approvals by the PA), and delivery dates of the reports. The proposed work plan should be consistent with the technical approach and methodology, showing understanding of the TOR and ability to translate them into a feasible working plan. A list of the final documents, including reports, drawings, and tables to be delivered as final output, should be included here. The work plan should be consistent with the Work Schedule of Form TECH-8.
- c) <u>Organization and Staffing.</u> In this chapter you should propose the structure and composition of your team. You should list the main disciplines of the assignment, the key expert responsible, and proposed technical and support staff.]

FORM TECH-5. TEAM COMPOSITION AND TASK ASSIGNMENTS

Name of Staff	Firm	Area of Expertise	Position Assigned	Task Assigned
		1		

FORM TECH-6. CURRICULUM VITAE (CV) FOR PROPOSED PROFESSIONAL STAFF

1.	Proposed Position [only one candidate shall be nominated for each position]:
2.	Name of Firm [Insert name of firm proposing the staff]:
3.	Name of Staff [Insert full name]:
4.	Date of Birth:Nationality:
5.	Education [Indicate college/university and other specialized education of staff member, giving names of institutions, degrees obtained, and dates of obtainment]:
6.	Membership of Professional Associations:
7.	Other Training [Indicate significant training since degrees under 5 - Education were obtained]:
8.	Countries of Work Experience: [List countries where staff has worked in the last ten years]:
9.	Languages [For each language indicate proficiency: good, fair, or poor in speaking, reading, and writing]:
10.	Employment Record [Starting with present position, list in reverse order every employment held by staff member since graduation, giving for each employment (see format here below): dates of employment, name of employing organization, positions held.]:
Fro	om [Year]: To [Year]:
Em	nployer:
Pos	sitions held:

11. Detailed Tasks Assigned [List all tasks to be performed under this assignment]	Handle the Ta [Among the assign the following information of the second	aken that Best Illustra sks Assigned aments in which the staff has mation for those assignmen handle the tasks listed unde	s been involved, indicate nts that best illustrate
	Name of assign	ment or project:	Year:
		1 3	
			features:
	Activities perfo	ormed:	
13. Certification: I, the undersigned, certify that t me, my qualifications, and my herein may lead to my disquali	experience. I under	stand that any willful m	2
		Dat	te:
[Signature of staff member or author	ized representative of the	e staff]	Day/Month/Year
Full name of authorized representation	entative:		

FORM TECH-7. STAFFING SCHEDULE¹

> 10	Name of Staff	Staff input (in the form of a bar chart) ²										Total staff-month input				
N°			1	2	<u>.</u>		3	4		5		6		Home	Field ³	Total
Foreig	gn						<u> </u>									
1		[Home]													XXXXX	
1		[Field]												32222		
2															XXXXX	1
														XXXX		
3		-										-			\\$\\$\\$\\$\	
														XXXXX	XXXXX	
								-						XXXXXXX	\$\$\$\$	ł
														XXXXXX	XXXX	
n								-				-		\$\$\$\$\$\$\$	NA XXX	1
											Subto	tol		XXXXXXX		
											Subto	tai				
Local		Terr 3	1	1		1				1	1	1 1	ı		~~~	1
1		[Home]						-				-		32222	SSSSS	ł
		[Field]												XXXXX	XXXXX	
2												-		32222	XXXXXX	ł
														XXXXX	SSSSS	
								-		 		-		322223		1
															SSSSS	
n														XXXX		1
I_		ı	1	I			1	1		1	Subto	tal	1	20000		
											Total			(XXXXXX)	XXXX	

- 1 For Professional Staff the input should be indicated individually; for Support Staff it should be indicated by category (e.g.: draftsmen, clerical staff, etc.).
- 2 Months are counted from the start of the assignment. For each staff indicate separately staff input for home and field work.
- 3 Field work means work carried out at a place other than the Consultant's home office.

Full time input

Part time input

FORM TECH-8. WORK SCHEDULE

· N°	Activity ¹	Months ²												
· IN			1	2	2	3	3		4	:	5	(5	
1														
2														
3														
4														
5														
n														

¹ Indicate all main activities of the assignment, including delivery of reports (e.g.: inception, interim, and final reports), and other benchmarks such as PA approvals. For phased assignments indicate activities, delivery of reports, and benchmarks separately for each phase.

2 Duration of activities shall be indicated in the form of a bar chart.

Section 4. Financial Proposal - Standard Forms

[Comments in brackets [] provide guidance to the shortlisted Consultants for the preparation of their Financial Proposals; they should be deleted from the Financial Proposals to be submitted.]

Financial Proposal Standard Forms shall be used for the preparation of the Financial Proposal according to the instructions provided under para. 14 of Section 2. Such Forms are to be used whichever is the selection method indicated in para. 4 of the Letter of Invitation.

[The Appendix "Financial Negotiations - Breakdown of Remuneration Rates" is to be only used for financial negotiations when Quality-Based Selection, Selection Based on Qualifications, or Single-Source Selection method is adopted, according to the indications provided under para. 6.3 of Section 2.]

Form FIN-1.	Financial Proposal Submission Form	35
Form FIN-2.	Summary of Costs	36
Form FIN-3.	Breakdown of Costs by Activity ¹	37
Form FIN-4.	Breakdown of Remuneration ¹	38
Form FIN-5.	Breakdown of Reimbursable Expenses ¹	39

FORM FIN-1. FINANCIAL PROPOSAL SUBMISSION FORM

Date]

To: [Name and address of PA] Dear Sirs: We, the undersigned, offer to provide the consulting services for [Insert title of assignment] in accordance with your Request for Proposal dated [Insert Date] and our Technical Proposal. Our attached Financial Proposal is for the sum of [Insert amount(s) in words and figures]. Our Financial Proposal shall be binding upon us subject to the modifications resulting from Contract negotiations, up to expiration of the validity period of the Proposal, i.e. before the date indicated in Paragraph Reference 1.12 of the Data Sheet. Commissions and gratuities paid or to be paid by us to agents relating to this Proposal and Contract execution, if we are awarded the Contract, are listed below ² : Name and Address of Agents Amount and Currency Purpose of Commission or Gratuity We understand you are not bound to accept any Proposal you receive. We remain, Yours sincerely, Authorized Signature [In full and initials]: and Title of Signatory: Name Address:				[Location, Date]
We, the undersigned, offer to provide the consulting services for [Insert title of assignment] in accordance with your Request for Proposal dated [Insert Date] and our Technical Proposal. Our attached Financial Proposal is for the sum of [Insert amount(s) in words and figures¹]. Our Financial Proposal shall be binding upon us subject to the modifications resulting from Contract negotiations, up to expiration of the validity period of the Proposal, i.e. before the date indicated in Paragraph Reference 1.12 of the Data Sheet. Commissions and gratuities paid or to be paid by us to agents relating to this Proposal and Contract execution, if we are awarded the Contract, are listed below²: Name and Address of Agents Amount and Currency Purpose of Commission or Gratuity We understand you are not bound to accept any Proposal you receive. We remain, Yours sincerely, Authorized Signature [In full and initials]: Name Name Name	To:	[Name and address of PA	4]	
in accordance with your Request for Proposal dated [Insert Date] and our Technical Proposal. Our attached Financial Proposal is for the sum of [Insert amount(s) in words and figures¹]. Our Financial Proposal shall be binding upon us subject to the modifications resulting from Contract negotiations, up to expiration of the validity period of the Proposal, i.e. before the date indicated in Paragraph Reference 1.12 of the Data Sheet. Commissions and gratuities paid or to be paid by us to agents relating to this Proposal and Contract execution, if we are awarded the Contract, are listed below²: Name and Address of Agents Amount and Currency Purpose of Commission or Gratuity We understand you are not bound to accept any Proposal you receive. We remain, Yours sincerely, Authorized Signature [In full and initials]: Name and Title of Signatory: Name	Dear	Sirs:		
from Contract negotiations, up to expiration of the validity period of the Proposal, i.e. before the date indicated in Paragraph Reference 1.12 of the Data Sheet. Commissions and gratuities paid or to be paid by us to agents relating to this Proposal and Contract execution, if we are awarded the Contract, are listed below ² : Name and Address of Agents Amount and Currency Purpose of Commission or Gratuity We understand you are not bound to accept any Proposal you receive. We remain, Yours sincerely, Authorized Signature [In full and initials]: Name Name Name		cordance with your Request	for Proposal dated [Insert Da	ate] and our Technical Proposal. Our
and Contract execution, if we are awarded the Contract, are listed below ² : Name and Address of Agents Amount and Currency Purpose of Commission or Gratuity We understand you are not bound to accept any Proposal you receive. We remain, Yours sincerely, Authorized Signature [In full and initials]:		Contract negotiations, up t	to expiration of the validity p	eriod of the Proposal, i.e. before the
We understand you are not bound to accept any Proposal you receive. We remain, Yours sincerely, Authorized Signature [In full and initials]:Name and Title of Signatory:Name	and (
We remain, Yours sincerely, Authorized Signature [In full and initials]:	Nam	e and Address of Agents	Amount and Currency	Gratuity
and Title of Signatory: Name		We remain,	ot bound to accept any Propo	
and Title of Signatory: Name		Authorized Signature [<i>In</i>	full and initials]:	Name
of Firm: Address:				
		of Firm:		Address:

Amounts must coincide with the ones indicated under Total Cost of Financial proposal in Form FIN-2.

If applicable, replace this paragraph with: "No commissions or gratuities have been or are to paid by us to agents relating to this Proposal and Contract execution."

FORM FIN-2. SUMMARY OF COSTS

	Co	osts
Item	Indicate Foreign Currency	Indicate Local Currency
Total Costs of Financial Proposal ²		

- 1 Indicate between brackets the name of the foreign currency. Maximum of three currencies; use as many columns as needed, and delete the others.
- 2 Indicate the total costs excluding local taxes to be paid by the PA in each currency. Such total costs must coincide with the sum of the relevant Subtotals indicated in all Forms FIN-3 provided with the Proposal.

THAR COAL & ENERGY BOARD Page 35

FORM FIN-3. Breakdown of Costs by Activity¹

Group of Activities (Phase): ²	Description: ³					
		Co	osts			
Cost component	[Indicate Foreign Currency # 1] ⁴	[Indicate Foreign Currency # 2] ⁴	[Indicate Foreign Currency # 3] ⁴	[Indicate Local Currency]		
Remuneration ⁵						
Reimbursable Expenses ⁵						
Subtotals						

- Form FIN-3 shall be filled at least for the whole assignment. In case some of the activities require different modes of billing and payment (e.g.: the assignment is phased, and each phase has a different payment schedule), the Consultant shall fill a separate Form FIN-3 for each group of activities. For each currency, the sum of the relevant Subtotals of all Forms FIN-3 provided must coincide with the Total Costs of Financial Proposal indicated in Form FIN-2.
- 2 Names of activities (phase) should be the same as, or correspond to the ones indicated in the second column of Form TECH-8.
- 3 Short description of the activities whose cost breakdown is provided in this Form.
- 4 Indicate between brackets the name of the foreign currency. Use the same columns and currencies of Form FIN-2.
- 5 For each currency, Remuneration and Reimbursable Expenses must respectively coincide with relevant Total Costs indicated in Forms FIN-4, and FIN-5.

FORM FIN-4. Breakdown of Remuneration¹

Name ²	Position ³	Staff-month Rate
Foreign Staff	I	
		[Home] [Field]
Local Staff		
		[Home]
		[Field]

- 1 Form FIN-4 shall be filled in for the same Professional and Support Staff listed in Form TECH-7.
- 2 Professional Staff should be indicated individually; Support Staff should be indicated per category (e.g.: draftsmen, clerical staff).
- 3 Positions of the Professional Staff shall coincide with the ones indicated in Form TECH-5.
- 4 Indicate separately staff-month rate and currency for home and field work.

FORM FIN-5. Breakdown of Reimbursable Expenses

N°	Description ¹	Unit	Unit Cost ²

- 1 Delete items that are not applicable or add other items according to Paragraph Reference 14.1 of the Data Sheet.
- 2 Indicate unit cost and currency.
- 3 Indicate route of each flight, and if the trip is one- or two-ways.
- 4 Only if the training is a major component of the assignment, defined as such in the TOR.

Section 5. Terms of Reference

HIRING OF ENGINEERING FIRM FOR THE ASSISTANCE OF THAR COAL TARIFF DETERMINATION COMMITTEE (TCTDC) IN THE DETERMINATION OF COD STAGE TARIFF FOR 7.8 MTPA MINE OF M/S SINO-SINDH RESOURCE LIMITED (SSRL) AT THAR BLOCK-I

(a) Background

- 1. Thar Coal and Energy Board ("TCEB") has been established under Thar Coal and Energy Board Act, 2011 (the "TCEB Act"), to act, *inter alia*, as a one window facilitator in matters relating to coal mining projects being developed in the region of Thar, Sindh, Pakistan. Pursuant to Section 5 of the TCEB Act, TCEB is mandated to determine and control the tariff of coal from Thar, Sindh, Pakistan subject to the relevant guidelines and consistent with the provisions of the TCEB Act, laid down by the Government of Sindh ("GOS"). In addition, TCEB is also responsible for determining the process and procedures for reviewing tariff and recommending tariff adjustments.
- 2. In order to review the coal tariff petitions by various mine lease holders in Thar Coalfield and to determine the coal tariff, the Government of Sindh has notified the Thar Coal Tariff Determination Rules, 2014 on 27th November, 2014. Subsequently, the Chairman TCEB/Chief Minister, in terms of Rule 3(1) of the Thar Coal Tariff Determination Rules, 2014, has constituted a three member "Thar Coal Tariff Determination Committee", to assist the Board in matters relating to the coal tariff and to send its recommendations to the Board by evaluating and reviewing coal tariff petitions submitted by the mine lease holders in Thar.

(b) Project and Assignment

- 3. SSRL has submitted a tariff petition (the "Tariff Petition") before the Thar Coal and Energy Board (TCEB) for determination of its COD Stage Tariff in respect of SSRL's Open Cast Lignite Mining Project entailing 7.8 Mtpa Mine located at Thar Block-I, District Tharparkar, Sindh, Pakistan (the "SSRL Project").
- 4. TCEB and its Thar Coal Tariff Determination Committee, constituted pursuant to Rule 3(1) of Tariff Rules is required to analyze and evaluate the contents of the Tariff Petition and determine the COD-stage tariff for the SSRL Project in accordance with the requirements of the relevant laws of Pakistan, including without limitation, the TCEB Act, the Tariff Rules and other rules and regulations made thereunder.

(c) Engineering consultancy services

5. The Consultant shall thoroughly review, evaluate and comment on all supporting documents submitted by SSRL from a technical perspective, and perform all other functions as may be reasonably requested by the PA which functions shall include but not be limited to the following:

I. Verification of Overburden (OB) and Coal Volumes

Develop a precise 3-dimensional terrain model of the site to validate overburden and coal volume calculations.

- Comprehensive drone-based topographic surveying to map the pit, dump and effluent pond area and determine accurate waste and coal deposit volumes.
- Detailed analysis of volumetric data to support material balance estimation.
- Utilization of high-resolution geospatial data and ground control to ensure accuracy.

II. Verification of Consumables Inventory

Conduct a thorough review of consumable resources essential for mining operations, including but not limited to:

- Diesel, lubricants, spare parts, and tyres, with detailed documentation of current inventories.
- Examination of procurement records and consumption rates

III. Physical Verification of Machinery and Dewatering Pumps

Inspect all active/non-active machinery and dewatering pumps/accessories to confirm their condition and functionality. This includes but not limited to:

- Verification of equipment status, maintenance records, and operational history.
- Enumeration/Assessment of dewatering pumps' capacity/condition and dewatering network/pipes
- Verification of Trucks and dumpers capacity.
- Cross-checking logged operational hours against field records.
- Verification dewatered volumes/ discharge pond capacity
- Assessment of available Hydrogeological data

IV. Infrastructure Verification

Inspect and verify all infrastructure supporting mining activities, including buildings, roads, power, water, and sewage facilities, ensuring availability/functionality.

V. Land Acquisition and Resettlement Verification

Verify land acquisition records and the status of resettlement activities, ensuring compliance with agreements and proper documentation.

VI. Security Verification

Verify security infrastructure and capital items at the site

6. Team Composition and Job Description

S. No.	Position	Man-months for SSRL Project
1.	Project manager / Team Leader (01 No.)	1
2.	Mining Engineer (01 No.)	1
3.	Valuation / Estimation Engineer (01 No.)	1
4.	Surveying Specialist (01 No.)	1
5.	Site Surveyor / Associate Engineer (02 No.)	2
6.	Drone Survey Specialist (01 No.)	1
7.	Support Staff (05 Nos.)	05
	Total man months	12

7.1. Qualification and job description for the Key Experts:

1) Project manager / Team Leader:

Roles and Responsibilities:

- Overall management and supervision of the progress of the assignment
- Overall execution, conduct and monitoring of tasks as outlined in TORs
- Insurance of timely production and submission of deliverables to the Client
- Mobilization of team and deployment of resources, necessary for the performance of all functions which the Client may request them to perform
- Liaison with the client; and attendance of meetings and presentation
- Provide justifications and calculations used, as well as a detailed explanation for the methodology used in arriving at specific recommendations for the Determination.
- Attending hearings and meetings, as requested by Client, in connection with the evaluation of the Tariff Petition and Determination
- Submit final reports of findings and proposing appropriate drafts of the relevant sections of the Determination, in a manner and form specified by Client.

Qualification and Experience: Bachelor's degree / master's degree in Civil/Mech/Mining/Geology having minimum 10 years of engineering project management experience.

2) Mining Engineer:

Roles and Responsibilities:

- Verifying the over burden (OB) and coal volumes of SSRL Pit with the help of developed geological models using GMP software (e.g. Geovia Surpac, Minex, Vulcan, or equivalent)
- Review different plans submitted by SSRL including but not limited to mining plan, coal extraction plan, dewatering plan etc. and identify the deviations with respect to actual work performed on site.
- Perform gap analysis between actual working hours of site equipment (including machinery and dewatering pumps, coal handling system etc.) and the working hours plan submitted by SSRL.

- Assist the team in matter of determining the EPC, Non-EPC cost.
- Large topographic survey assignments.
- Carrying out all activities necessary or incidental to any of the foregoing functions.
- Provide technical assistance in preparation of final recommendation report.

Qualification and Experience: Bachelor's degree / master's degree in mining or any relevant engineering field, having at least 05 years of experience in mineral resource estimations and mine planning.

3) Valuation Engineer:

Roles and Responsibilities:

- Verifying consumables including diesel, lubes, spare parts, Tyres, etc.
- Verification of Site equipment's and machinery (including mining equipment's, OB removal equipment's, dewatering pumps, coal handling system etc.)
- Conducting verification of infrastructure including buildings, roads, power, water, sewage etc.
- Conducting verification of land acquisition and re-settlement in relation to the mine.
- Conducting verification of security at the mining site; and
- Carrying out all activities necessary or incidental to any of the foregoing functions.

Qualification and Experience: Bachelor's degree / master's degree in engineering (Civil / Mechanical / any other relevant engineering fields), having 05 years of experience as valuation / quantity engineer

4) Surveying Specialist:

Roles and Responsibilities:

- Verification of digital models submitted by SSRL.
- Assist the team in development of 3-dimensional digital terrain model of the excavated coal mine and removed over burden material and coal off-site. The Consultant may use latest 3D mapping technology involving mapping drone using minimum 8 Ground Control Points (GCP) using Real-time kinematic (RTK) positioning.

Accuracy: 1cm + 1 ppm RTK Horizontal Accuracy

1.5cm + 1 ppm RTK Vertical Accuracy

Drone: DJI Phantom 4 RTK or Yuneec Tornado H920 Plus or

equivalent

Software: Pix4Dmapper, Agisoft Photoscan or Autodesk Recap photo or

equivalent

Qualification and Experience: Bachelor's degree / master's degree in engineering (Civil / Mining / Software / Computer sciences / any other relevant), having more than five (05) years of relevant experience.

5) Site Surveyor:

Roles and Responsibilities:

- Provide assistance to the expert in the matter of determining the over burden (OB) and coal volumes of mine,
- Perform comprehensive routine surveys to evaluate the ongoing mine operations.
- Assist the expert in the matter of determination of actual working hours of site equipment (including mining equipment, OB removal equipment, Dewatering equipment, coal handling system etc.)
- Assist the expert in the matter of estimating life of site equipment (including mining equipment's, OB removal equipment, Dewatering equipment's, coal handling system etc.)
- Liaison with the management of SSRL to evaluate their on-site and off-site operation.
- Conducting verification of contractors and employees of SSRL including their salaries, wages and benefits.
- Assist the team in matter of preparing final recommendation report.

Qualification and Experience: Diploma/ B.Tech/ any other relevant, having more than five (05) years of experience as quantity / site surveyor.

6) Drone Survey Specialist:

Roles and Responsibilities:

- Proficiency in flying drones, such as quadcopters or fixed-wing aircraft.
- Survey software: Knowledge of survey software like AutoCAD, ArcGIS, or specialized drone surveying software.
- Understanding of data analysis techniques, including photogrammetry and geospatial analysis.
- Familiarity with programming languages like Python, R, or MATLAB.

Qualification and Experience: Bachelor's degree: In a field such as Surveying, Geomatics, Civil Engineering, or a related discipline. Certifications: Obtaining certifications like the Certified Survey Technician (CST) or the Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Certification can be beneficial.

1- PROJECT MANAGER / TEAM LEAD (01 Position)

(10 Marks)

Qualification (40% weightage)

- Master's degree in Civil/Mech/Mining/Geology. (40% weightage)
- Bachelor's degree in Civil/Mech/Mining/Geology. (30% weightage)

Relevant Experience (60% weightage)

Master's degree with overall experience in relevant field. (60% weightage)

- 15 years or more of experience in the mining sector (60% weightage)
- 12 to 14 years of experience in the mining sector (50% weightage)

- 10 to 11 years of experience in the mining sector (40% weightage)
- Less than 10 years of experience in the mining sector (ZERO weightage)

Bachelor's Degree with overall experience in relevant field. (60% weightage)

- 20 years or more of experience in the mining sector (60% weightage)
- 15 to 19 years of experience in the mining sector. (50% weightage)
- 12 to 14 years of experience in the mining sector (40% weightage)
- 10 to 11 years of experience in the mining sector (30% weightage)
- Less than 10 years of experience in the mining sector (ZERO weightage)

2- MINING ENGINEER (01 Position)

(10 Marks)

Qualification (40% weightage)

- Master's degree in mining or other relevant engineering fields. (40% weightage)
- Bachelor's degree in mining or other relevant engineering fields. (30% weightage)

Relevant Experience (60% weightage)

Master's degree with overall experience in relevant field. (60% weightage)

- 10 years or more of experience in the mining sector (60% weightage)
- 7 to 9 years of experience in the mining sector (50% weightage)
- 5 to 6 years of experience in the mining sector (40% weightage)
- Less than 5 years of experience in the mining sector (ZERO weightage)

Bachelor's Degree with overall experience in relevant field. (60% weightage)

- 15 years or more of experience in the mining sector (60% weightage)
- 11 to 14 years of experience in the mining sector. (50% weightage)
- 8 to 10 years of experience in the mining sector (40% weightage)
- 5 to 7 years of experience in the mining sector (30% weightage)
- Less than 5 years of experience in the mining sector (ZERO weightage)

3- VALUATION / ESTIMATION ENGINEER (01 Position)

(10 Marks)

Qualification (40% weightage)

- Master's degree in Civil/Mech or other relevant engineering fields. (40% weightage)
- Bachelor's degree in Civil/Mech or other relevant engineering fields. (30% weightage)

Relevant Experience (60% weightage)

Master's degree with overall experience in relevant field. (60% weightage)

- 10 years or more of experience in the mining sector (60% weightage)
- 7 to 9 years of experience in the mining sector (50% weightage)
- 5 to 6 years of experience in the mining sector (40% weightage)
- Less than 5 years of experience in the mining sector (ZERO weightage)

Bachelor's Degree with overall experience in relevant field. (60% weightage)

- 15 years or more of experience in the mining sector (60% weightage)
- 11 to 14 years of experience in the mining sector. (50% weightage)
- 8 to 10 years of experience in the mining sector (40% weightage)
- 5 to 7 years of experience in the mining sector (30% weightage)
- Less than 5 years of experience in the mining sector (ZERO weightage)

4- SURVEYING SPECIALIST (01 Position)

(10 Marks)

Qualification (40% weightage)

- Master's degree in Civil/Mining/Software/Computer sciences/ any other relevant. (40% weightage)
- Bachelor's degree in Civil/Mining/Software/Computer sciences/ any other relevant. (30% weightage)

Relevant Experience (60% weightage)

Master's degree with overall experience in relevant field. (60% weightage)

- 10 years or more of experience in the mining sector (60% weightage)
- 7 to 9 years of experience in the mining sector (50% weightage)
- 5 to 6 years of experience in the mining sector (40% weightage)
- Less than 5 years of experience in the mining sector (ZERO weightage)

Bachelor's Degree with overall experience in relevant field. (60% weightage)

- 15 years or more of experience in the mining sector (60% weightage)
- 11 to 14 years of experience in the mining sector. (50% weightage)
- 8 to 10 years of experience in the mining sector (40% weightage)
- 5 to 7 years of experience in the mining sector (30% weightage)
- Less than 5 years of experience in the mining sector (ZERO weightage)

5- SITE SURVEYOR/ASSOCIATE ENGINEER (02 Positions) (08 Marks)

Qualification (40% weightage)

- B.Tech in Civil/Mining/Mech/ any other relevant. (40% weightage)
- Diploma in Civil/Mining/Mech/ any other relevant. (30% weightage)

Relevant Experience (60% weightage)

B.Tech degree with overall experience in relevant field. (60% weightage)

- 10 years or more of experience in the mining sector (60% weightage)
- 7 to 9 years of experience in the mining sector (50% weightage)
- 5 to 6 years of experience in the mining sector (40% weightage)
- Less than 5 years of experience in the mining sector (ZERO weightage)

Diploma with overall experience in relevant field. (60% weightage)

- 15 years or more of experience in the mining sector (60% weightage)
- 11 to 14 years of experience in the mining sector. (50% weightage)
- 8 to 10 years of experience in the mining sector (40% weightage)
- 5 to 7 years of experience in the mining sector (30% weightage)
- Less than 5 years of experience in the mining sector (ZERO weightage)

6- DRONE SURVEY SPECIALIST (01 Position) (02 Marks)

Qualification (40% weightage)

 Bachelor's degree in a field such as Surveying, Geomatics, Civil Engineering, or a related discipline. Certifications: Obtaining certifications like the Certified Survey Technician (CST) or the Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Certification can be beneficial. any other relevant. (40% weightage)

Relevant Experience (60% weightage)

- 15 years or more of experience in the flying drones, such as quadcopters or fixed-wing aircraft (60% weightage)
- 11 to 14 years of experience in flying drones, such as quadcopters or fixed-wing aircraft (50% weightage)
- 8 to 10 years of experience in flying drones, such as quadcopters or fixed-wing aircraft (40% weightage)
- 5 to 7 years of experience in flying drones, such as quadcopters or fixed-wing aircraft (30% weightage)
- Less than 5 years of experience in flying drones, such as quadcopters or fixed-wing aircraft (ZERO weightage)

8. Reporting Requirements and Time Schedule for Deliverables

S.	Deliverables	Time Schedule for	Payment
No.		SSRL Project	schedule
1	Upon satisfactory Inception Report	7 days after	10%
		mobilization	
2	Site survey and geological report	15 days after	10%
		mobilization	
3	Satisfactory report related to coal extraction,	25 days after	30%
	dewatering and OB removal.	mobilization	
4	Satisfactory report related to Quantity and working	35 days after	30%
	hours of site equipment's, site consumables (diesel,	mobilization	
	lubes, spare parts, Tyres, etc.) and other related cost		
	(including salary, insurance etc.)		
5	Upon submission of satisfactory final recommendation	45 days after	20%
	report	mobilization	

Section 6. Forms of Contract

General Conditions of Contract

1. GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 Definitions

Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms whenever used in this Contract have the following meanings:

- (a) "Applicable Law" means the Sindh Public Procurement Act, thereunder Rules 2010.
- (b) "Procuring Agency PA" means the implementing department which signs the contract
- (c) "Consultant" means a professional who can study, design, organize, evaluate and manage projects or assess, evaluate and provide specialist advice or give technical assistance for making or drafting policies, institutional reforms and includes private entities, consulting firms, legal advisors, engineering firms, construction managers, management firms, procurement agents, inspection agents, auditors, international and multinational organizations, investment and merchant banks, universities, research institutions, government agencies, nongovernmental organizations, and individuals.
- (d) "Contract" means the Contract signed by the Parties and all the attached documents listed in its Clause 1, that is General Conditions (GC), the Special Conditions (SC), and the Appendices.
- (e) "Contract Price" means the price to be paid for the performance of the Services, in accordance with Clause 6;
- (f) "Effective Date" means the date on which this Contract comes into force and effect pursuant to Clause GC 2.1.
- (g) "Foreign Currency" means any currency other than the currency of the PA's country.
- (h) "GC" means these General Conditions of Contract.
- (i) "Government" means the Government of Sindh.
- (i) "Local Currency" means Pak Rupees.
- (k) "Member" means any of the entities that make up the joint venture/consortium/association, and "Members" means all these entities.
- (l) "Party" means the PA or the Consultant, as the case may be, and "Parties" means both of them.

- (m) "Personnel" means persons hired by the Consultant or by any Sub-Consultants and assigned to the performance of the Services or any part thereof.
- (n) "SC" means the Special Conditions of Contract by which the GC may be amended or supplemented.
- (o) "Services" means the consulting services to be performed by the Consultant pursuant to this Contract, as described in the Terms of References.
- (p) "Sub-Consultants" means any person or entity to whom/which the Consultant subcontracts any part of the Services.
- (q) "In writing" means communicated in written form with proof of receipt.

1.2 Law Governing Contract

This Contract, its meaning and interpretation, and the relation between the Parties shall be governed by the applicable law.

1.3 Language

This Contract is executed in the language specified in the SC, which shall be the binding and controlling language for all matters relating to the meaning or interpretation of this Contract.

1.4 Notices

- 1.4.1 Any notice, request or consent required or permitted to be given or made pursuant to this Contract shall be in writing. Any such notice, request or consent shall be deemed to have been given or made when delivered in person to an authorized representative of the Party to whom the communication is addressed, or when sent to such Party at the address specified in the SC.
- 1.4.2 A Party may change its address for notice hereunder by giving the other Party notice in writing of such change to the address specified in the SC.

1.5 Location

The Services shall be performed at such locations as are specified in special condition of contract and, where the location of a particular task is not so specified, at such locations, whether in the Government's country or elsewhere, as the PA may approve.

1.6 Authority of Member in Charge

In case the Consultant consists of a joint venture/ consortium/ association of more than one individual firms, the Members hereby authorize the individual firms or specified in the SC to act on their behalf in exercising all the Consultant's rights and obligations towards the PA under this Contract, including without limitation the receiving of instructions and payments from the PA.

1.7 Authorized Representati ves

Any action required or permitted to be taken, and any document required or permitted to be executed under this Contract by the PA or the Consultant may be taken or executed by the officials specified in the SC.

1.8 Taxes and Duties

The Consultant, Sub-Consultants, and their Personnel shall pay such direct or indirect taxes, duties, fees, and other impositions levied under the Applicable Law as specified in the SC, the amount of which is deemed to have been included in the Contract Price.

1.9 Fraud and Corruption

If the PA determines that the Consultant and/or its Personnel, sub-contractors, sub-consultants, services providers and suppliers has engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices, in competing for or in executing the Contract, then the PA may, after giving 14 days notice to the Consultant, terminate the Consultant's employment under the Contract, and may resort to other remedies including blacklisting/disqualification as provided in SPPR 2010.

Any personnel of the Consultant who engages in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practice during the execution of the Contract, shall be removed in accordance with Sub-Clause 4.2.

2. COMMENCEMENT, COMPLETION, MODIFICATION AND TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

2.1 Effectiveness of Contract

This Contract shall come into effect on the date the Contract is signed by both Parties or such other later date as may be stated in the SC. The date the Contract comes into effect is defined as the Effective Date.

2.2 Commencement of Services

The Consultant shall begin carrying out the Services not later than the number of days after the Effective Date specified in the SC.

2.3 Expiration of Contract

Unless terminated earlier pursuant to Clause GC 2.6 hereof, this Contract shall expire at the end of such time period after the Effective Date as specified in the SC.

2.4 Modifications or Variations

Any modification or variation of the terms and conditions of this Contract, including any modification or variation of the scope of the Services, may only be made by written agreement between the Parties. However, each Party shall give due consideration to any proposals for modification or variation made by the other Party.

2.5 Force Majeure

The failure on the part of the parties to perform their obligation under the contract will not be considered a default if such failure is the result of natural calamities, disasters and circumstances beyond the control of the parties.

2.5.2 No Breach of Contract

The failure of a Party to fulfill any of its obligations under the contract shall not be considered to be a breach of, or default under, this Contract insofar as such inability arises from an event of Force Majeure, provided that the Party affected by such an event (a) has taken all reasonable precautions, due care and reasonable alternative measures in order to carry out the terms and conditions of this Contract, and (b) has informed the other Party as soon as possible about the occurrence of such an event.

2.5.3 Extension of Time

Any period within which a Party shall, pursuant to this Contract, complete any action or task, shall be extended for a period equal to the time during which such Party was unable to perform such action as a result of Force Majeure.

2.5.4 Payments

During the period of their inability to perform the Services as a result of an event of Force Majeure, the Consultant shall be entitled to continue to be paid under the terms of this Contract, as well as to be reimbursed for additional costs reasonably and necessarily incurred by them during such period for the purposes of the Services and in reactivating the Service after the end of such period.

2.6 Termination

2.6.1 By the PA

The PA may terminate this Contract in case of the occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs (a) through (f) of this Clause GC 2.6.1. In such an occurrence the PA shall give a not less than thirty (30) days' written notice of termination to the Consultant, and sixty (60) days' in the case of the event referred to in (e).

- (a) If the Consultant does not remedy the failure in the performance of their obligations under the Contract, within thirty (30) days after being notified or within any further period as the PA may have subsequently approved in writing.
- (b) If the Consultant becomes insolvent or bankrupt.
- (c) If the Consultant, in the judgment of the PA has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for or in executing the Contract.
- (d) If, as the result of Force Majeure, the Consultant(s) are unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty (60) days.
- (e) If the PA, in its sole discretion and for any reason whatsoever, decides to terminate this Contract.
- (f) If the Consultant fails to comply with any final decision reached as a result of arbitration proceedings pursuant to Clause GC 8 hereof.

2.6.2 By the Consultant

The Consultants may terminate this Contract, by not less than thirty (30) days' written notice to the PA, such notice to be given after the occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs (a) through (c) of this Clause GC 2.6.2:

- (a) If the PA fails to pay any money due to the Consultant pursuant to this Contract without consultants fault.
- (b) Pursuant to Clause GC 7 hereof within forty-five (45) days after receiving written notice from the Consultant that such payment is overdue.
- (c) If, as the result of Force Majeure, the Consultant is unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty (60) days.
- (d) If the PA fails to comply with any final decision reached as a result of arbitration pursuant to Clause GC 8 hereof.

2.6.3 Payment upon Termina tion

Upon termination of this Contract pursuant to Clauses GC 2.6.1 or GC 2.6.2, the PA shall make the following payments to the Consultant:

- (a) payment pursuant to Clause GC 6 for Services satisfactorily performed prior to the effective date of termination;
- (b) except in the case of termination pursuant to paragraphs (a) through (c), and (f) of Clause GC 2.6.1, reimbursement of any reasonable cost incident to the prompt and orderly termination of the Contract, including the cost of the return travel of the Personnel and their eligible dependents.

3. OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONSULTANT

3.1 General

3.1.1 Standard of Performance

The Consultant shall perform the Services and carry out their obligations hereunder with all due diligence, efficiency and economy, in accordance with generally accepted professional standards and practices, and shall observe sound management practices, and employ appropriate technology and safe and effective equipment, machinery, materials and methods. The Consultant shall always act, in respect of any matter relating to this Contract or to the Services, as faithful advisers to the PA, and shall at all times support and safeguard the PA's legitimate interests in any dealings with Sub-Consultants or third Parties.

3.2 Conflict of Interests

The Consultant shall hold the PA's interests paramount, without any consideration for future work, and strictly avoid conflict with other assignments or their own corporate interests.

3.2.1 Consultants not to Benefit from Commissions, Discounts, etc.

The payment of the Consultant pursuant to Clause GC 6 shall constitute the Consultant's only payment in connection with this Contract or the Services, and the Consultant shall not accept for their own benefit any trade commission, discount, or similar payment in connection with activities pursuant to this Contract or to the Services or in the discharge of their obligations under the Contract, and the Consultant shall use their best efforts to ensure that the Personnel, any Sub-Consultants, and agents of either of them similarly shall not receive any such additional payment.

3.2.2 Consultant and Affiliates not to be Otherwise Interested in Project

The Consultant agrees that, during the term of this Contract and after its termination, the Consultant and any entity affiliated with the Consultant, as well as any Sub-Consultants and any entity affiliated with such Sub-Consultants, shall be disqualified from providing goods, works or services (other than consulting services) resulting from or directly related to the Consultant's Services for the preparation or implementation of the project.

3.2.3 Prohibition of Conflicting Activitie

The Consultant shall not engage, and shall cause their Personnel as well as their Sub-Consultants and their Personnel not to engage, either directly or indirectly, in any business or professional activities which would conflict with the activities assigned to them under this Contract.

3.3 Confidentiality

Except with the prior written consent of the PA, the Consultant and the Personnel shall not at any time communicate to any person or entity any confidential information acquired in the course of the Services, nor shall the Consultant and the Personnel make public the recommendations formulated in the course of, or as a result of, the Services.

3.4 Insurance to be Taken Out by the Consultant

The Consultant (a) shall take out and maintain, and shall cause any Sub-Consultants to take out and maintain, at their (or the Sub-Consultants', as the case may be) own cost but on terms and conditions approved by the PA, insurance against the risks, and for the coverage, as shall be specified in the SC; and (b) at the PA's request, shall provide evidence to the PA showing that such insurance has been taken out and maintained and that the current premiums have been paid.

3.5 Consultant's Actions Requiring PA's Prior Approval

The Consultant shall obtain the PA's prior approval in writing before taking any of the following actions:

- (a) entering into a subcontract for the performance of any part of the Services,
- (b) appointing such members of the Personnel not listed by name in Appendix C, and
- (c) any other action that may be specified in the SC.

3.6 Reporting Obligations

- (a) The Consultant shall submit to the PA the reports and documents specified in (PA may insert appendix) hereto, in the form, in the numbers and within the time periods set forth in the said Appendix.
- (b) Final reports shall be delivered in CD ROM in addition to the hard copies specified in said Appendix.
- 3.7 Documents
 Prepared by
 the Consultant
 to be the
 Property of
 the PA
- (a) All plans, drawings, specifications, designs, reports, other documents and software submitted by the Consultant under this Contract shall become and remain the property of the PA, and the Consultant shall, not later than upon termination or expiration of this Contract, deliver all such documents to the PA, together with a detailed inventory thereof.
- (b) The Consultant may retain a copy of such documents and software. Restrictions about the future use of these documents, if any, shall be specified in the SC.

3.8 Accounting, Inspection and Auditing

- 3.8.1 The Consultant shall keep, and shall cause its Sub-consultants to keep, accurate and systematic accounts and records in respect of the Contract, in accordance with internationally accepted accounting principles and in such form and detail as will clearly identify relevant time changes and costs.
- 3.8.2 The Consultant shall permit, and shall cause its Sub-consultants to permit, the PA and/or persons appointed by the PA to inspect its accounts and records relating to the performance of the Contract and the submission of the Proposal to provide the Services, and to have such accounts and records audited by auditors appointed by the PA if requested by the PA. The Consultant's attention is drawn to Clause 1.9.1 which provides, inter alia, that acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the PA's inspection and audit rights provided for under Clause 3.8 constitute a prohibited practice subject to contract termination (as well as to a determination of ineligibility pursuant to the PA's prevailing sanctions procedures.).

4. Consultant's Personnel

4.1 Description of Personnel

The Consultant shall employ and provide such qualified and experienced Personnel and Sub-Consultants as are required to carry out the Services. The titles, agreed job descriptions, minimum qualifications, and estimated periods of engagement in the carrying out of the Services of the Consultant's Key Personnel are described in Appendix C. The Key Personnel and Sub-Consultants listed by title as well as by name in Appendix C are hereby approved by the PA.

4.2 Removal

(a) Except as the PA may otherwise agree, no changes shall be made

and/or Replacement of Personnel

in the Key Personnel. If, for any reason beyond the reasonable control of the Consultant, such as retirement, death, medical incapacity, among others, it becomes necessary to replace any of the Key Personnel, the Consultant shall provide as a replacement a person of equivalent or better qualifications.

- (b) If the PA finds that any of the Personnel have (i) committed serious misconduct or have been charged with having committed a criminal action, or (ii) have reasonable cause to be dissatisfied with the performance of any of the Personnel, then the Consultant shall, at the PA's written request specifying the grounds thereof, provide as a replacement a person with qualifications and experience acceptable to the PA.
- (c) The Consultant shall have no claim for additional costs arising out of or incidental to any removal and/or replacement of Personnel.

5. OBLIGATIONS OF THE PA

5.1 Assistance and Exemptions

The PA shall use its best efforts to ensure that the Government shall provide the Consultant such assistance and exemptions as specified in the SC.

5.2 Change in the Applicable Law Related to Taxes and Duties

If, after the date of this Contract, there is any change in the Applicable Law with respect to taxes and duties which increases or decreases the cost incurred by the Consultant in performing the Services, then the remuneration and reimbursable expenses otherwise payable to the Consultant under this Contract shall be increased or decreased accordingly by agreement between the Parties, and corresponding adjustments shall be made to the amounts referred to in Clauses GC 6.2 (a) or (b), as the case may be.

5.3 Services and Facilities

The PA shall make available free of charge to the Consultant the Services and Facilities listed under Appendix F.

6. PAYMENTS TO THE CONSULTANT

6.1 Security

The consultant has to submit bid security and the performance security at the rate mention in SC.

6.2 Lump-Sum Payment

The total payment due to the Consultant shall not exceed the Contract Price which is an all inclusive fixed lump-sum covering all costs required to carry out the Services described in Appendix A. Except as provided in Clause 5.2, the Contract Price may only be increased above the amounts stated in Clause 6.2 if the Parties have agreed to additional payments in accordance with Clause 2.4.

- **6.3** Contract Price The price payable in Pak Rupees/foreign currency/ is set forth in the SC.
- 6.4 Payment for Additional Services

For the purpose of determining the remuneration due for additional services as may be agreed under Clause 2.4, a breakdown of the lump-sum price is provided in Appendices D and E.

6.5 Terms and Conditions of Payment

Payments will be made to the account of the Consultant and according to the payment schedule stated in the SC. Unless otherwise stated in the SC, the first payment shall be made against the provision by the Consultant of an advance payment guarantee for the same amount, and shall be valid for the period stated in the SC. Such guarantee shall be in the form set forth in Appendix G hereto, or in such other form, as the PA shall have approved in writing. Any other payment shall be made after the conditions listed in the SC for such payment have been met, and the Consultant has submitted an invoice to the PA specifying the amount due.

7. GOOD FAITH

7.1 Good Faith

The Parties undertake to act in good faith with respect to each other's rights under this Contract and to adopt all reasonable measures to ensure the realization of the objectives of this Contract.

8. SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES

8.1 Amicable Settlement

The Parties agree that the avoidance or early resolution of disputes is crucial for a smooth execution of the Contract and the success of the assignment. The Parties shall use their best efforts to settle amicably all disputes arising out of or in connection with this Contract or its interpretation.

8.2 Dispute Resolution

Any dispute between the Parties as to matters arising pursuant to this Contract that cannot be settled amicably within thirty (30) days after receipt by one Party of the other Party's request for such amicable settlement may be submitted by either Party for settlement in accordance with the provisions specified in the SC.

III. Special Conditions of Contract

(Clauses in brackets { } are optional; all notes should be deleted in final text)

Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract
{1.1}	Sindh Public Procurement Act and Sindh Public Procurement Rules 2010
1.3	The language is English.
1.4	The addresses are: Procuring Agency:Attention: Facsimile:E- mail: Consultant:
	Attention: Facsimile: E-mail:

{1.6} {The Member in Charge is [insert name of member]}

Note: If the Consultant consists of a joint venture/ consortium/ association of more than one entity, the name of the entity whose address is specified in Clause SC 1.6 should be inserted here. If the Consultant consists only of one entity, this Clause SC 1.8 should be deleted from the SC.

1.7	The Authorized Representatives are:				
	For the PA:				
	For the Consultant:				

1.8 PA shall specify all relevant taxes including stamp duty and service charges to be borne by the consultant. In case there is exemption from any rates, taxes, the same shall be mentioned here.

The Consultant must be informed in Clause Reference 3.7 of the Data Sheet about which alternative the PA wishes to apply.

The PA warrants that the Consultant, the Sub-Consultants and the Personnel shall be exempt from (or that the PA shall pay on behalf of the Consultant, the Sub-Consultants and the Personnel, or shall reimburse the Consultant, the Sub-Consultants and the Personnel for) any indirect taxes, duties, fees, levies and other impositions imposed, under the Applicable Law, on the Consultant, the Sub-Consultants and the Personnel in respect of:

- (a) any payments whatsoever made to the Consultant, Sub-Consultants and the Personnel (other than nationals or permanent residents of Pakistan), in connection with the carrying out of the Services;
- (b) any equipment, materials and supplies brought into the Government's country by the Consultant or Sub-Consultants for the purpose of carrying out the Services and which, after having been brought into such territories, will be subsequently withdrawn there from by them;
- (c) any equipment imported for the purpose of carrying out the Services and paid for out of funds provided by the PA and which is treated as property of the PA;
- (d) any property brought into the province by the international Consultant, any Sub-Consultants or the Personnel or the eligible dependents of such Personnel for their personal use and which will subsequently be withdrawn there from by them upon their respective departure from the Government's country, provided that:

- (1) the Consultant, Sub-Consultants and Personnel, and their eligible dependents, shall follow the usual customs procedures of the Government's country in importing property into the Government's country; and
- (2) if the Consultant, Sub-Consultants or Personnel, or their eligible dependents, do not withdraw but dispose of any property in the Pakistan for which customs duties and taxes have been exempted, the Consultant, Sub-Consultants or Personnel, as the case may be, (i) shall bear such customs duties and taxes in conformity with the regulations of the Government's country, or (ii) shall reimburse them to the PA if they were paid by the PA at the time the property in question was brought into the Government's country.
- 2.2 The date for the commencement of Services is [insert date].
- 2.3 The time period shall be [insert time period, e.g.: twelve months, eighteen months].
- The risks and the coverage shall be as follows:
 - (a) Third Party motor vehicle liability insurance in respect of motor vehicles operated by the Consultant or its Personnel or any Sub-Consultants or their Personnel, with a minimum coverage of [insert amount and currency];
 - (b) Third Party liability insurance, with a minimum coverage of [insert amount and currency];
 - (c) professional liability insurance, with a minimum coverage of [insert amount and currency];
 - (d) employer's liability and workers' compensation insurance in respect of the Personnel of the Consultant and of any Sub-Consultants, in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Applicable Law, as well as, with respect to such Personnel, any such life, health, accident, travel or other insurance as may be appropriate; and
 - (e) insurance against loss of or damage to (i) equipment purchased in whole or in part with funds provided under this Contract, (ii) the Consultant's property used in the performance of the Services, and (iii) any documents prepared by the Consultant in the performance of the Services.

Note: Delete what is not applicable

{3.5 (c)} {The other actions are: [insert actions].}

Note: *If there are no other actions, delete this Clause SC 3.5 (c).*

Note: If there is to be no restriction on the future use of these documents by either Party, this Clause SC 3.7 should be deleted. If the Parties wish to restrict such use, any of the following options, or any other option agreed to by the Parties, may be used:

{The Consultant shall not use these documents and software for purposes unrelated to this Contract without the prior written approval of the PA.}

{The PA shall not use these documents and software for purposes unrelated

to this Contract without the prior written approval of the Consultant.}

{Neither Party shall use these documents and software for purposes unrelated to this Contract without the prior written approval of the other Party.}

- **Note**: List here any assistance or exemptions that the PA may provide under Clause 5.1. If there is no such assistance or exemptions, state "not applicable."
- Procuring Agency shall indicate bid security not less than 1% and above 5%

 Performance security shall not exceed 10% of contract amount
- 6.3 The amount in Pak Rupees or in foreign Currency [insert amount].

6.5 The accounts are:

for foreign currency or currencies: [insert account]

for local currency: [insert account]

Payments shall be made according to the following schedule:

- (a) Ten (10) percent of the Contract Price shall be paid on the commencement date against the submission of a demand guarantee for the same.
- (b) Twenty (20) percent of the lump-sum amount shall be paid upon submission of the inception report.
- (c) Twenty-five (25) percent of the lump-sum amount shall be paid upon submission of the interim report.
- (d) Twenty-five (25) percent of the lump-sum amount shall be paid upon submission of the draft final report.
- (e) Twenty (20) percent of the lump-sum amount shall be paid upon approval of the final report.
- (f) The demand guarantee shall be released when the total payments reach fifty (50) percent of the lump-sum amount.

Note: This sample clause should be specifically drafted for each contract.

Disputes shall be settled by complaint redressal committee define in SPPR 2010 or through arbitration Act of 1940.in accordance with the following provisions:

Appendix A (INTEGRITY PACT)

DECLARATION OF FEES, COMMISSION AND BROKERAGE ETC. PAYABLE BY THE SUPPLIERS OF GOODS, SERVICES & WORKS IN

Contract No	Dated	
Contract Value: Contract Title:		
induced the procurement Government of Sindh (C	of any contract, right, int	ier] hereby declares that it has not obtained or terest, privilege or other obligation or benefit from a subdivision or agency thereof or any other entity business practice.
has fully declared the bragreed to give and shall a principle indirectly through any consultant, director, probribe, finder's fee or kiclobtaining or inducing the	okerage, commission, feed not give or agree to give to natural or juridical person moter, shareholder, spon sback, whether described e procurement of a contra	[name of Supplier] represents and warrants that it is etc. paid or payable to anyone and not given or to anyone within or outside Pakistan either directly on, including its affiliate, agent, associate, broker sor or subsidiary, any commission, gratification as consultation fee or otherwise, with the object of act, right, interest, privilege or other obligation or which has been expressly declared pursuant hereto
arrangements with all pe	rsons in respect of or rela	d will make full disclosure of all agreements and ted to the transaction with GoS and has not taken t the above declaration, representation or warranty.
making full disclosure, na declaration, representation or benefit obtains	nisrepresenting facts or ta on and warranty. It agrees ined or procured as afores	strict liability for making any false declaration, not king any action likely to defeat the purpose of this that any contract, right, interest, privilege or other said shall, without prejudice to any other rights and et or other instrument, be voidable at the option of
to indemnify GoS for an and further pay compens gratification, bribe, finde	y loss or damage incurred ation to GoS in an amount or's fee or kickback given the procurement of any co	ed by GoS in this regard, [name of Supplier] agrees d by it on account of its corrupt business practices equivalent to ten time the sum of any commission, by [name of Supplier] as aforesaid for the purpose ontract, right, interest, privilege or other obligation
Name of Buyer:		Name of Seller/Supplier:
Signature:		Signature:

CONTRACT

THIS CONTRACT ("Contract") is entered into this [insert starting date of assignment], by and between [insert PA"s name] ("the PA") having its principal place of business at [insert PA"s address], and [insert Consultant"s name] ("the Consultant") having its principal office located at [insert Consultant"s address].

WHEREAS, the PA wishes to have the Consultant performing the services hereinafter referred to, and

WHEREAS, the Consultant is willing to perform these services,

NOW THEREFORE THE PARTIES hereby agree as follows:

- 1. Services
- (i) The Consultant shall perform the services specified in Annex A, "Terms of Reference and Scope of Services," which is made an integral part of this Contract ("the Services").
- (ii) The Consultant shall provide the reports listed in Annex B, "Consultant's Reporting Obligations," within the time periods listed in such Annex, and the personnel listed in Annex C, "Cost Estimate of Services, List of Personnel and Schedule of Rates" to perform the Services.
- 2. Term The Consultant shall perform the Services during the period commencing [insert start date] and continuing through [insert completion date] or any other period as may be subsequently agreed by the parties in writing.
- 3. Payment A. Ceiling

For Services rendered pursuant to Annex A, the PA shall pay the Consultant an amount not to exceed [insert amount]. This amount has been established based on the understanding that it includes all of the Consultant's costs and profits as well as any tax obligation that may be imposed on the Consultant.

C. Payment Conditions

Payment shall be made in [specify currency], no later than 30 days following submission by the Consultant of invoices in duplicate to the Coordinator designated in paragraph 4.

4. Economic Price Adjustment

In order to adjust the remuneration for inflation, a price adjustment provision has been included if the contract has duration of more than 18 months or if the inflation is expected to exceed ----% per annum. The adjustment will be made every 12 months after the date of the contract for remuneration. Remuneration will be adjusted by using the relevant index as per following provision: "Payments for remuneration made in accordance with Clause 3 shall be adjusted as follows:

Remuneration pursuant to the rates set forth in Annex C shall be adjusted every 12 months (and, for the first time, with effect for the remuneration earned in the [13] th calendar month after the date of the Contract) by applying the following formula:

$$R_l \quad R_{lo} \quad \frac{I_l}{I_{lo}}$$

where R_l is the adjusted remuneration, R_{lo} is the remuneration payable on the basis of the rates set forth in Annex C for payable remuneration, I_l is the official rate of inflation for the first month for which the adjustment is to have effect and, I_{lo} is the official rate of inflation for the month of the date of the Contract."

5. Project Administratio

A. <u>Coordinator</u>

The PA designates Mr./Ms. *[insert name]* as PA's Coordinator; the Coordinator shall be responsible for the coordination of activities under the Contract, for receiving and approving invoices for payment, and for acceptance of the deliverables by the PA.

B. <u>Timesheets</u>

During the course of their work under this Contract the Consultant's employees providing services under this Contract may be required to complete timesheets or any other document used to identify time spent, as instructed by the Coordinator.

C. Records and Accounts

The Consultant shall keep accurate and systematic records and accounts in respect of the Services, which will clearly identify all charges and expenses. The PA reserves the right to audit, or to nominate a reputable accounting firm to audit, the Consultant's records relating to amounts claimed under this Contract during its term and any extension, and for a period of three months thereafter.

6. Performance Standard

The Consultant undertakes to perform the Services with the highest standards of professional and ethical competence and integrity. The Consultant shall promptly replace any employees assigned under this Contract that the PA considers unsatisfactory.

7. Confidentiality

The Consultants shall not, during the term of this Contract and within two years after its expiration, disclose any proprietary or confidential information relating to the Services, this Contract or the PA's business or operations without the prior written consent of the PA.

8. Ownership of Material

Any studies, reports or other material, graphic, software or otherwise, prepared by the Consultant for the PA under the Contract shall belong to and remain the property of the PA. The Consultant may retain a copy of such documents and

		software.
9.	Consultant Not to be Engaged in Certain Activities	The Consultant agrees that, during the term of this Contract and after its termination, the Consultants and any entity affiliated with the Consultant, shall be disqualified from providing goods, works or services (other than the Services or any continuation thereof) for any project resulting from or closely related to the Services.
10.	Insurance	The Consultant will be responsible for taking out any appropriate insurance coverage for their personnel and equipments.
11.	Assignment	The Consultant shall not assign this Contract or Subcontract any portion thereof it without the PA's prior written consent.
12.	Law Governing Contract and Language	The Contract shall be governed by the laws of Islamic Republic of Pakistan or the Provincial Government and the language of the Contract shall be English.
13.	Dispute Resolution	Any dispute arising out of this Contract, which cannot be amicably settled between the parties, shall be referred to adjudication/arbitration in accordance with the Arbitration Act of 1940
FO	R THE PA	FOR THE CONSULTANT
	Signed by _	Signed by
	Title:	Title: